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Barrow Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword to the Accounts
Introduction
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2009-10 financial
year and its position at the year-end 31 March 2010. Figures for the previous year are
included to assist in the interpretation of the accounting statements.
The purpose of the Statement of Accounts is to give readers clear information about the
Council’s finances. It discloses the cost of Council services in the year, where the money
came from to pay for the services and what the assets and liabilities were at the year-end.
The accounting statements consist of core financial statements followed by a consolidated set
of notes covering all of the core statements. Supplementary statements are presented (with
their own notes) after the notes on the core statements.
The Statement of Accounts comprises:









Statement of Accounting Policies
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
Accounting Statements:
o The Core Financial Statements:
 Income and Expenditure Account
 Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balance
 Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
 Balance Sheet
 Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Supplementary Statements:
o Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account and
Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance
o Collection Fund
Annual Governance Statement.

Statement of Accounting Policies
The purpose of this statement is to explain the basis for the recognition, measurement and
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts. The accounting policies and
estimation techniques disclosed are those that are significant to the understanding of the
Statement of Accounts (Pages 5 to 11).
Statement of Responsibilities for the Accounts
This statement sets out the Council’s responsibilities for the accounts under local government
legislation and other requirements, and the Borough Treasurer’s legal and professional
responsibility for the accounts (Page 12).
Accounting Statements
The Income and Expenditure Account (Page 13) brings together all of the functions of the
Council and summarises all of the resources that have been generated, consumed or set
aside in providing services during the year.
The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance (Page 14) takes the surplus or
deficit from the Income and Expenditure Account and then applies certain statutory items that
are taken into account in determining the Council’s budget requirement and in turn its Council
Tax demand. This results in the General Fund Balance.
The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (Page 15) brings together all gains
and losses recognised by the Council in the financial year.
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The Balance Sheet (Page 16) sets out the Council’s financial position as at the 31 March
2010. It shows balances and reserves at the Council’s disposal, its long-term indebtedness,
and the long-term and net assets employed in its operations, together with summarised
information on the fixed assets held.
The Cash Flow Statement (Page 17). This consolidated statement summarises the inflows
and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital
purposes for the financial year.
Notes to the Core Financial Statements
The notes to the core financial statements (Pages 18 to 50) add to and interpret the content
of the individual accounting statements. They provide more explanation and analysis where
matters of financial significance cannot adequately be shown in the statements themselves.
Supplementary Statements
The Housing Revenue Account (Pages 51 to 58) reflects the statutory obligation to account
separately for Council housing provision. The HRA has two statements. The HRA Income
and Expenditure Account show the HRA services in more detail than the whole authority
statement. The Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance adjusts the HRA Income and
Expenditure surplus or deficit by applying statutory items. This results in the year end HRA
balance.
The Collection Fund (Pages 59 to 61) reflects the statutory requirement to maintain a
separate record of transactions in relation to council tax and non-domestic rates, and
illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to precepting authorities, the national
non-domestic rates pool and the General Fund.
Annual Governance Statement
The Annual Governance Statement is the mechanism used to demonstrate that, during the
financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Council had an adequate governance regime in
place and that all business was conducted in compliance with the existing arrangements.
(Pages 62 to 70).
Comparison with revenue budget
The Council’s original spending plans (budget) in overall terms and the actual outturn for
2009-10 are shown below:
2008-09
Budget
Actual
£
13,092,000

13,145,927

(53,927)
8,887,317
4,204,683

2009-10
Budget
Actual
£
Net General Fund budget approved by
Council on the 23 February 2009
Movement in the General Fund
balance for the year
To be funded by:
Central Government
Council Tax

13,742,000

13,449,953

292,047
9,412,688
4,227,312

The net actual expenditure after contributions to reserves for 2009-10 is £292,047 below the
Council’s net General Fund budget; see breakdown between Income and Expenditure items
(Page 13) and other statutory items (Page 33, Note 18). There was a net under-spend on the
General Fund services of £220,734. A net contribution to earmarked reserves of £1,876,125
was made. This includes £1,881,225 carried forward Area Based Grant. Area Based Grant is
a non-ring fenced fund received from Central Government.
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For the Housing Revenue Account the original spending plans (budget) and the actual outturn
for 2009-10 are shown below:
2008-09
Budget
Actual
£
29,820
120,557
surplus
surplus

Housing Revenue Account budget approved
by Council on the 23 February 2009

2009-10
Budget
Actual
£
52,670
22,918
surplus
deficit

The main reason for the deficit of £22,918 for 2009-10 is lower than budgeted dwelling rents
matched mostly by an under-spend of subsidy payable to Central Government; see
breakdown between Income and Expenditure items (Page 51) and other statutory items
(Page 53, Note 2).
Balances and reserves
The balances and reserves available to the Council at the 31 March 2010:

General Fund revenue balance
General Fund earmarked reserves
HRA revenue balance
Usable capital receipts reserve
Total usable reserves and balances

31 March 2009
£
(1,971,258)
(3,005,972)
(845,980)
(1,572,673)
(7,395,883)

31 March 2010
£
(2,263,306)
(4,882,098)
(823,061)
(1,908,986)
(9,877,451)

Retirement benefits
The Balance Sheet (Page 16) shows the Council’s pension liability matched by the pension
reserve at the balance sheet date. This reflects the Council’s future liability for pensions
relating to current and previous staff. There is no overall effect from pension liabilities on
Council Tax or housing rent levels.
Prudential code
The Council adopted the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities in 2004-05.
This sets out a framework for the self-regulation of capital expenditure within the restrictions
of prudential indicators designed to maintain affordability, prudence and sustainability.
Capital programme
The Council’s capital investment for 2009-10 and how it has been financed is shown below,
together with the current debt outstanding and the prudential limit on external borrowing.
2008-09
£
15,656,880

2009-10
£
11,640,005

Capital investment

(2,115,177)
(10,817,391)
(642,407)
(2,081,905)
(15,656,880)

Financed by borrowing
Financed by grant
Financed by capital receipts
Financed by balances and reserves

(1,174,050)
(8,299,450)
(300,066)
(1,866,439)
(11,640,005)

(39,000,000)
(29,000,000)

Authorised limit for external debt
Total of external loans

(36,000,000)
(22,389,734)
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Group accounts
Where the Council has a group relationship with a separate entity it is required to consolidate
both sets of accounts and prepare group accounting statements. During 2009-10 the Council
has not had a group relationship with any organisations, therefore there are no group
accounting statements or disclosures in the Statement of Accounts.
Accounting policies
These accounts comply with relevant accounting practices and give a true and fair view of the
financial performance and position of the Council. The accounting policies adopted by the
Council are reviewed annually to ensure that the financial information presented is relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable. In 2009-2010 there has been a change in the
accounting treatment of Council Tax and Business Rates transactions. For Council Tax, the
share of the relevant transactions for the County Council and the Police Authority are now
included as debtors or creditors in the balance sheet. The Council’s portion of the
transactions remains within the main statements. The Business Rates collected on behalf of
Central Government are now shown as a debtor or creditor in the balance sheet. The
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), issued IFRIC 12 to
address how service concession operators should apply existing international financial
reporting standards to their arrangements.
The credit crunch
In 2009-2010 the Council continued its cautious approach towards counterparty investment
decisions. Deposits have been limited to the Council’s main bank, the HSBC which has one of
the highest credit rating scores and a solid capitalisation value.
International Financial Reporting Standards
New financial reporting standards are being introduced from the financial year 2010-11 to
comply with IFRS requirements, as required by HM Treasury. The Council’s accounts will
have to be prepared in accordance with the new code.
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Statement of Accounting Policies
General
The accounting convention adopted is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
categories of tangible fixed assets. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
following:


Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009 (SORP),
published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and
the Local Authority Scottish Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC);



Guidance issued by CIPFA on the application of UK Accounting Standards:
o Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP);
o Financial Reporting Standards (FRS);



Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP); and



Prudential Code on Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

Accruals of income and expenditure
Customer and client receipts that appear in the accounts as sales, fees, charges and rents
are accrued into the period that they relate to. Basic employee costs are charged to the
period within which the employee worked. Expenses and any additional working are paid in
the following month and are accounted for in the accounting period they are paid in.
Interest payable on external loans and external interest earned is accrued and accounted for
in the period it relates to, reflecting the overall economic effect in the accounting period. The
accumulated interest due but not paid or due but not yet received at the 31 March is included
in the Balance Sheet as current liabilities and current assets respectively.
The cost of supplies and services is accrued and accounted for in the period of consumption
or receipt. Accruals are made on an estimated or actual basis for all material amounts unpaid
at the year-end for goods and services received or works completed.
Bad debt provisions are created to adjust the carrying amount of debtors for doubtful and
uncollectable debts. The Council annually reviews the amount held in each provision to
reflect the current best estimate, primarily based on the age of the debts.
Acquired/discontinued operations
Any material income and expenditure directly related to acquired or discontinued operations is
shown as a separate item in the Income and Expenditure Account.
Any liability in respect of discontinued operations is disclosed as a separate item in the
Balance Sheet.
Contingent assets and liabilities
Where the Council has contingent assets and liabilities they are disclosed as a note to the
accounts if an economic benefit or obligation is probable.
Contingent assets and liabilities are not included in the accounting statements. Should
contingent assets or liabilities materialise then the resulting transaction will be accounted for
appropriately.
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Council tax and business rates transactions
The 2009 SORP introduced changes to the way of accounting for transactions relating to
council tax and business rates.
Previously, Barrow as the billing authority accounted for these transactions as debtors or
creditors in the balance sheet and attributed only the collection fund balance share of the
precepting authorities as a debtor or creditor with those authorities. Similar arrangements
were used for the business rates transactions.
The new accounting requirements introduced an agency arrangement. The billing authority
accounts for its own share of the council tax transactions in its balance sheet and its share of
the collection fund balance will be accounted for through a new account, the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account. The precepting authorities’ share of the council tax transactions as well
as their share of the collection fund balance will be accounted for as a debtor or creditor with
those authorities.
The transactions for business rates will similarly be treated as a debtor or creditor with the
Government national rates pool.
Events after the balance sheet date
Where an event after the balance sheet date, favourable or unfavourable, which provides
evidence of conditions that, existed at the balance sheet date occurs (adjusting event) the
amounts recognised in the Statement of Accounts are adjusted.
Where an event that occurs after the balance sheet date is indicative of conditions that arose
after the balance sheet date (non-adjusting event) the amounts recognised in the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted. For each material category of non-adjusting event after the
balance sheet date, the nature of the event and an estimate of the financial effect (or a
statement that such an estimate cannot be made reliably) are disclosed.
Events after the balance sheet date are reflected up to the date the Statement of Accounts is
authorised for issue. The date when the Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by
the Borough Treasurer is disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts, including confirmation of the
date up to which events after the balance sheet date have been considered.
Exceptional items, extraordinary items and prior period adjustments
Exceptional items are part of the ordinary activities of the Council and are included in the cost
of the service they relate to, unless they would materially distort the service’s cost and its use
as a comparative. Where necessary they are disclosed separately in the Income and
Expenditure Account and explained in Notes to the Accounts.
Extraordinary items are shown separately in the Income and Expenditure Account after the
Council’s ordinary activities, and are disclosed in a note to the accounts.
Prior period adjustments arise from corrections and adjustments from estimations and
accounting treatments used in the accounting process. Where practicable, the comparative
figures for the previous period are restated in the accounting statements and an explanatory
note included in the accounts.
Financial instruments
The accounting treatment of financial instruments is covered by three Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS’s). FRS 26 deals with recognition and measurement, FRS 25 with
presentation and disclosures, and FRS 29 replaces the disclosures part of FRS 25.
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another. Financial instruments therefore, cover both
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financial assets and financial liabilities. In a local authority context and particularly for the
Council, financial liabilities include; trade payables (creditors) and borrowings. Financial
assets include; trade receivables (debtors), bank deposits and investments.
Financial liabilities are included in the accounts when, in the case of trade payables, the
goods or services are received. Borrowing is recognised in the accounts when the amount
borrowed is received.
Financial assets are included in the accounts when, in the case of trade receivables, the
goods or services have been delivered or rendered. Investments and deposits are
recognised at the contract date.
Financial assets and liabilities are included in the accounts at fair value less any transactions
costs relating to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. Fair value is defined as
the amount for which financial assets could be exchanged or a financial liability settled under
normal market conditions.
The accounting treatment of financial instruments depends on the classification used and the
Council adopts the following classification:



Financial liabilities – amortised cost
Financial assets – loans and receivables

Amortised cost using the effective interest rate is a method of determining the Balance Sheet
carrying amount and the charges to the Income and Expenditure Account for the financial
instrument.
The carrying amount of loans and receivables and the interest income are measured using
the effective interest rate method, except for short duration receivables with no stated interest
that are measured at the original invoice amount.
Where statutory requirements dictate a different treatment for the carrying amounts relating to
premiums and discounts resulting from the early repayment and replacement of loans, the
Income and Expenditure Account will be charged or credited with the amount calculated using
the effective interest rate method, with a matching adjustment made to the Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account (FIAA) to reflect the statutory requirements.
Other types of financial instruments such as financial guarantees, soft loans, equities and
derivatives are not currently used by the Council.
Foreign currency translation
Income and expenditure arising from foreign currency transactions would be translated into
pounds sterling at the exchange rate on the transaction date.
Any assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date would be shown at the closing rate if no
other exchange rate were fixed.
Government grants and other contributions
Grants and other contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis.
Revenue grants are credited against the appropriate service revenue account to match the
expenditure they relate to.
Government grants that finance either all or part of an addition to the Council’s assets follow
the deferred credit method. Capital grants are credited to a government grants unapplied
account. Where the grant is used to finance the creation, acquisition or enhancement of a
fixed asset, amounts equivalent to the grants applied in financing are transferred to a
government grants-deferred account and as depreciation is charged over the life of the asset,
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the grant is released to the service revenue account over the useful life of the asset, to match
the depreciation of the asset it relates to.
Similar accounting treatment has been adopted for grants and contributions from other
bodies, using a private grants-deferred account.
However, capital grants relating to Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute
(REFFCUS) are credited to the revenue account to match the expenditure charged under this
category.
Group accounts
Group accounting requires the consolidation of separate entities accounts where a group
relationship exists with the Council. Where such relationships do exist group accounting
statements are prepared in addition to the Council’s own, separate entity, accounts.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets are held at cost and amortised over their economic lives subject to a
maximum of 20 years.
The Council annually reviews the economic lives of each intangible asset to reflect the current
best estimate.
Service revenue accounts are charged with a provision for amortisation and where required,
impairment, to reflect their use of assets in the course of providing their services.
Leases
The capital value and future liabilities of items acquired by operational leases are recorded as
a note to the Income and Expenditure Account. Annual lease payments are charged to the
appropriate service revenue account.
Rental payments under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding obligation. The finance charge is allocated and charged to
revenue over the term of the lease.
Overheads
In accordance with CIPFA guidance the costs of corporate and democratic management are
not recharged to services, they are shown as a separate objective heading in the Income and
Expenditure Account. Similarly non distributed costs are not recharged to services and are
shown separately in the Income and Expenditure Account.
The cost of support services are allocated or charged to individual services using the most
appropriate basis including staff time, number of employees or floor space; reflecting the
nature and type of service provided.
If any overheads are not charged or apportioned, the reason together with the details are
disclosed in a note to the Income and Expenditure Account.
Pension costs
The Council contributes to the Local Government Pension Scheme managed by Cumbria
County Council. It is a multi-employer, funded defined benefit scheme.
The pension costs charged to service revenue accounts are equal to the current service costs
rather than the contributions paid to the fund.
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The contributions paid into the fund on behalf of current employees together with costs arising
in respect of pensions paid to retired employees are set off against the current service cost
with any compensating adjustment coming from a transfer with the Pensions Reserve.
There is no impact on the bottom line of the General Fund.
The pension costs are determined on the basis of contribution rates that are set to meet the
known liabilities of the fund. Triennial valuations are carried out to determine the level of
contributions required.
The treatment and reporting of retirement benefits complies with the accounting and
disclosure requirements of FRS 17 – Retirement Benefits.
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making the
fixed assets needed to provide the service passes to the PFI contractor. The Council is
deemed to control the services that are provided under PFI schemes as the ownership of the
fixed assets will pass to the Council at the end of the contracts for no additional charge. The
Council carries the fixed assets used under the contracts on the Balance Sheet. Fixed assets
recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property
and equipment owned by the Council.
IFRIC 12 draws a distinction between two types of PFI agreement. In one, the operator
receives a financial asset from the government in return for constructing or upgrading the
public sector asset. In the other, the operator receives an intangible asset, i.e. no more than
the right to charge for the use of the public sector asset that it constructs or upgrades. IFRIC
12 allows for the possibility that both types of arrangement may exist within a single contract
Provisions
Provisions are created to meet potential liabilities or losses that have been incurred but where
timing or amounts are uncertain.
For housing benefit overpayments, a full provision is made for the possible non-collection of
this debt. However, it is Council policy to pursue all debtors where appropriate. Where
invoices have been issued to collect the overpayment debt, the income is recognised in the
Income and Expenditure Account to match the full provision. Overpayments are also
recovered from ongoing and future benefit entitlement where possible, however as the
amounts and timing of recovery are not certain, they are not recognised in the Income and
Expenditure Account.
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFFCUS)
Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding purposes when it
does not result in the creation of a fixed asset. The purpose of this is to enable this type of
expenditure to be funded from capital resources rather than being a charge on the council tax.
These items are generally grants and expenditure on property not owned by the authority,
and amounts directed under section 16(2) of Part I of the Local Government Act 2003. This
type of expenditure will be charged to the Income and Expenditure Account but reversed out
in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to neutralise the impact on the
Council Tax.
Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is written off as it is incurred as part of the
continuing operations of the Council.
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Reserves
Reserves are used to earmark funds to cover future expenditure. Expenditure should not be
charged directly to any reserve.
Capital reserves are not available for revenue purposes and certain reserves can only be
used for specific statutory purposes.
The Major Repairs Reserve is a statutory account and relates to the Housing Revenue
Account. The account can be used to finance HRA capital expenditure or repay the principal
of any amounts borrowed.
Stocks
Stocks are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with SSAP 9 – Stocks and long-term contracts.
Tangible fixed assets
Expenditure on the creation, acquisition or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is
capitalised. This includes any assets acquired under finance leases that have been
capitalised and included in the Balance Sheet on the basis of the outstanding obligation to
make future rental payments.
All asset values shown in the Balance Sheet are net of depreciation. Council dwellings are
included at their Existing Use Value – Social Housing Value. Operational assets are included
at the lower of net current replacement value or net realisable value in existing use apart from
specialised property which is included at depreciated replacement cost. Non-operational
assets are included at the lower of net current replacement value or net realisable value.
Infrastructure assets, equipment and community assets are included at historical cost. Assets
under construction are held at cost as non-operational assets until they are commissioned.
The Council appoints qualified valuers to undertake the revaluation of its assets every five
years. The asset values used in the accounts are based on the last valuation certificates
issued. For the HRA assets this was at 1 April 2009 and was carried out in accordance with
specific government guidance on stock valuation issued in July 2005. For all other assets the
last full valuation was at the 1 April 2008 and those valuations were carried out in accordance
with guidelines issued by CIPFA and the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (‘RICS’). The
valuation covered all major assets valued over the £10,000 de-minimus level.
Additions to the Council’s fixed assets, where the eventual asset is under construction, are
included in the accounts at their purchase or construction cost and when the asset is
commissioned, it is valued and brought into use. Where fixed assets are purchased and used
straight away, these are included at their cost of acquisition, which is usually based on a
formal valuation, until the next valuation or impairment review.
Where the disposal of a fixed asset results in a gain or a loss, the equivalent amount is
transferred to the Income and Expenditure Account. In order to comply with the statutory
restrictions on the use of capital receipts, the gain or loss is then reversed in the Statement of
Movement on the General Fund or HRA Balance. Disposal proceeds are subject to a deminimus value of £10,000, except the sale of Council dwellings that are all treated as capital
receipts.
In accordance with FRS 11 – Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill – the value at which
each category of asset is included in the Balance Sheet is reviewed annually. Where there is
a material change between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, an impairment
adjustment is made in the accounts.
In accordance with FRS 15 – Tangible Fixed Assets – all assets are depreciated except land.
Assets are not depreciated in the year of their acquisition or creation; they are depreciated in
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the year of their disposal. Assets are depreciated for full years and not for interim periods if
disposed of part way through a year. Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis and are
calculated on the opening balance.
Due to the requirements of the current statutory framework the depreciation charges are
replaced with the statutory requirement for the repayment of external loans, except for the
Housing Revenue Account where resource accounting determines that depreciation charges
remain.
All financial transactions relating to fixed assets in the balance sheet are reflected in a Capital
Adjustment Account and a Revaluation Reserve.
The Capital Adjustment Account records all transactions relating to the financing of capital
expenditure.
The Revaluation Reserve reflects the valuation gains on fixed assets owned by the Council.
The reserve holds information relating to individual assets and their accumulated balance,
created from revaluations, can only be used in the impairment and disposal of the individual
assets. No individual asset can have a negative balance within the Revaluation Reserve.
Impairment and disposal entries can only be charged against the balance built up from
revaluation gains.
Value Added Tax
VAT is only included in the accounts where it is deemed to be irrecoverable.
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Accounts
The Authority’s Responsibilities
The authority is required to:




Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Borough Treasurer;
manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard it’s assets;
Approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Borough Treasurer’s Responsibilities
The Borough Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the SORP).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Borough Treasurer has:




selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
Complied with the local authority SORP.

The Borough Treasurer has also:



kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

We certify that the accounts set out on Pages 13 to 61 of this Statement of Accounts give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Council for 2009-10 and its income and
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2010.

M Saleh CFPA, BA, M.Litt
Borough Treasurer
22 June 2010 revised 20 September 2010

Councillor O N Flitcroft
Audit Committee Chairman
29 June 2010 revised 29 September 2010
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Accounting Statements
Income and Expenditure Account
This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in
providing services and managing the Council during the last year. It includes all day-to-day
expenses and related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the
value of fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits
earned by employees in the period.
Previous Year
Net Spend
Restated
£
1,594,853
10,274,443
1,506,418
7,105,306
953,610
(146,341)
1,570,491
4,109,539
26,968,319
406,155
(3,258)
108,500
1,276,500
235,905
(462,405)
1,276,000
29,805,716
(4,238,811)
(3,909,334)
(7,801,311)
13,856,260

Central services to the
public
Cultural, environmental and
planning services
Highways, roads and
transport services
Housing Revenue Account
Other housing services
Exceptional items Note 2
Corporate and democratic
core
Non distributed costs Note
3
Net Cost of Services
Loss on the disposal of
fixed assets Note 5
Gain on the disposal of
contingent assets Note 6
Parish council precepts
Interest payable and similar
charges Note 7
Contribution of housing
capital receipts to
Government Pool Note 8
Interest and investment
income Note 7
Pensions interest cost and
expected return on
pensions assets Note 9
Net Operating
Expenditure
Income from Council Tax
Note 1
General government grants
Note 10
Non-domestic rates
redistribution
Deficit for the year
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Gross
Spend

Gross
Income

Net Spend

£

£

£

8,842,999

(7,098,433)

1,744,566

16,283,902

(6,900,836)

9,383,066

2,366,183

(1,523,758)

842,425

6,244,206
21,761,634
37,739

(8,999,098)
(20,922,784)
(188,696)

(2,754,892)
838,850
(150,957)

1,622,245

(85,809)

1,536,436

3,065,464

(748,650)

2,316,814

60,224,372

(46,468,064)

13,756,308
103,366
(50,678)
102,000
994,929
243,988
(16,558)
1,969,000
17,102,355
(4,437,775)
(5,272,760)
(7,316,049)
75,771

Barrow Borough Council

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council’s actual financial performance for
the year, measured in terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve
months. However, the authority is required to raise council tax on a different accounting
basis, the main differences being:


Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are
consumed.



The payment of a share of housing capital receipts to the Government scores as a loss in
the Income and Expenditure Account, but is met from usable capital receipts rather than
council tax.



Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and
pensioners, rather than as future benefits are earned.

The General Fund Balance compares the council’s spending against the council tax that it
raised for the year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and
contributions to reserves earmarked for future expenditure.
This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income
and Expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance:
Previous
Year
Restated
£
13,856,260
(13,802,333)
53,927
(2,025,186)
(1,971,259)

Current
Year
Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory
proper practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund
Balance for the year Notes 17 and 18
(Increase)/decrease in General Fund Balance for the Year
General Fund Balance brought forward
General Fund Balance carried forward
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£
75,771
(367,818)
(292,047)
(1,971,259)
(2,263,306)

Barrow Borough Council

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows
the aggregate increase in its net worth. In addition to the deficit generated on the Income and
Expenditure Account, it includes gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets
and re-measurement of the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits.
Previous
Year
Restated
£
13,856,260
(14,688,294)
(1,345,000)
(2,177,034)

Current Year

Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
Surplus arising on the revaluation of fixed assets Note 25
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities
Note 9
Total recognised (gains)/losses for the year

Page 15

£
75,771
(1,669,227)
9,216,000
7,622,544

Barrow Borough Council

Balance Sheet
31 March 2009
Restated
£

80,370,912
43,591,465
2,198,441
1,877,376
9,466,305
15,739,045
10,565,905
8,182,464
171,991,913
7,367
171,999,280
30,586
7,006,746
4,588,982
183,625,594
(633,282)
(5,658,478)
177,333,834
(29,000,000)
(509,095)
(3,020,970)
(39,011,597)
0
(22,199,154)
83,593,018

(69,836,971)
664,718
(29,268,854)
(1,572,673)
(7,367)
22,199,154
0
(1,971,258)
(845,980)
52,185
(3,005,972)
(83,593,018)

31 March 2010
£
Tangible Fixed Assets Notes 19 to 32
Operational assets:
Council dwellings
Other land and buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure assets
Community assets
Non-operational assets:
Commercial and other properties
Assets under construction
Surplus assets, held for disposal
Total fixed assets
Long-term debtors Note 33
Total long-term assets
Current assets
Stocks Note 34
Debtors Note 35
Cash and bank
Total assets
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowing Note 36
Creditors Note 37
Total assets less current liabilities
Long-term borrowing Note 7
Provisions Note 38
Unapplied grants Note 39
Grants deferred Note 39
Deferred liability Note 40
Liability related to defined benefit pension
scheme Note 9
Total assets less liabilities
Financed by: (Note 41)
Capital adjustment account Note 42
Financial instruments adjustment account
Note 43
Revaluation reserve Note 44
Usable capital receipts reserve Note 45
Deferred capital receipts
Pensions reserve Note 9
Major repairs reserve Page 57 Note 15
General Fund balance
Housing Revenue Account balance
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Note 46
Earmarked reserves Note 47
Total net worth

83,356,750
43,382,575
1,832,320
1,810,938
9,717,045
15,778,114
11,303,501
9,066,541
176,247,784
10,300
176,258,084
29,845
7,026,789
1,125,842
8,182,476
184,440,560
(489,173)
(6,372,340)
(6,861,513)
177,579,047
(22,389,734)
(680,191)
(2,342,126)
(43,763,534)
(37,625)
(32,395,363)
75,970,474

(68,371,658)
423,645
(30,169,311)
(1,908,986)
(5,300)
32,395,363
(411,486)
(2,263,305)
(823,061)
45,723
(4,882,098)
(75,970,474)

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements authorised at the
meeting of the Audit Committee on the 29 June 2010.
Borough Treasurer:
Date: 20 September 2010
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Cash Flow Statement
2008-09
Restated
£
(8,461,506)

1,276,500
(493,277)
783,223

5,560,775
8,526,239
(798,601)
(8,445,373)
(33,417)
4,809,623
(2,868,660)
(4,900,000)
3,743,900
(1,156,100)

2,000,000
(2,000,000)
0
(4,024,760)

2009-10
£
Net movement on revenue activities Note 53
Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance
Cash outflows
Interest paid
Cash inflows
Interest received
Net movement in servicing of finance
Capital Activities
Cash outflows
Purchase of fixed assets
Other capital cash payments
Cash inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Capital grants received Note 54
Other capital cash receipts Note 55
Net movement on capital activities
Net cash (inflow)/outflow before financing Note 56
Management of liquid resources
Net increase/(decrease) in short-term deposits
Net increase/(decrease) in other liquid resources
Net movement on liquid resources
Financing
Cash outflows
Repayments of amounts borrowed
Cash inflows
New short-term loans
Net movement on financing
Net (increase)/decrease in cash
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£
(7,883,883)

1,139,037
(18,546)
1,120,491

1,641,705
6,695,523
(490,316)
(5,726,917)
(52,745)
2,067,250
(4,696,142)
0
1,548,940
1,548,940

6,610,266
0
6,610,266
3,463,064
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements
1.

Prior period adjustments

The Core Accounting Statements have been restated for 2008-09 to reflect the change in
accounting for the Collection Fund. Both NNDR and the council tax relating to the major
preceptors are now included as government debtors. The amounts relating to the Council
remain in the Statements in the relevant headings.
The income recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account is the amount due for the
year on an accrual basis. This includes the Councils share of the surplus or deficit on the
year and excludes any prior year surplus or deficit due to the General Fund from the Income
and Expenditure Account.
Income and Expenditure Account

Audited Statement of Accounts 2008-09
Include 2008-09 deficit
Remove 2006-07 collection fund surplus
Income from Council Tax

Income from
Council Tax
£
(4,273,918)
35,107
(4,238,811)

Collection fund
(surplus)/deficit
£
(39,265)
39,265
0

This results in an increase in the deficit for the year of £74,372 (£35,107 + £39,265) which is
excluded from the General Fund balance in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance.
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
Deficit for the
year on the
Income and
Expenditure
Account
£
13,781,888
74,372

Audited Statement of Accounts 2008-09
Change in Income from Council Tax
Council tax adjustment

13,856,260

Net additional amount
required by statute and
non-statutory proper
practices to be debited to
credited to the General
Fund Balance
£
(13,727,961)
(74,372)
(13,802,333)

The Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory proper practices to be
debited or credited to the General Fund Balance for the year is been restated to exclude the
Income from Council Tax not attributable to the 2008-09 General Fund Balance. The overall
effect of this change in accounting treatment is neutral to the General Fund.
All elements of the national non-domestic rates (NNDR) and the council tax relating to the
major preceptors are now included as government debtors. The amounts due to the major
preceptors and the NNDR pool are held as debtors on the Balance Sheet. The amounts
relating to the Council are carried in the relevant headings:
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Balance Sheet
NNDR
DCLG
£
Audited Statement of Accounts 2008-09
Government debtors
473,426
Allocate Debtors
Arrears
1,370,212
Bad debt provision
(1,074,151)
Allocate Creditors
Prepayments and receipts in advance
(566,396)
203,091
Government debtors
Council tax arrears
Bad debt provision - council tax arrears
Prepayments and receipts in advance

203,091

203,091

Council tax
Cumbria
County
Council
£

Police
Authority
£

Barrow
Borough
Council
£

289,500

47,451

3,368,199
(2,252,603)

556,274
(372,028)

610,511
(408,301)

(761,319)
643,777

(125,735)
105,962

(137,995)
64,215

643,777

105,962

643,777

105,962

610,511
(408,301)
(137,995)
64,215

The Council Tax income for 2009-10 is shown on an accrual basis which includes the
demand on the Collection Fund and the share of the balance for the year.
2.

Exceptional items

The exceptional items for 2009-10 are shown below.
2008-09
£
15,000
30,789
(38,181)
(153,949)
(146,341)
3.

2009-10
£
Exceptional expenditure items:
Employment tribunal
Consultant fees for VAT claim
Exceptional income items:
Bank of Credit and Commerce International dividend
VAT repaid including interest for cultural services

0
37,739
0
(188,696)
(150,957)

Non distributed costs

In addition to specific items of revenue expenditure, the non distributed costs include the
capital charges that relate to the Council’s non-operational assets. The value of these
transactions varies between years, so to provide some clarity the transactions associated with
non-operational assets for 2009-10 are shown below.
2008-09
£
326,756
5,601,486
715,772
0
(188,292)
(2,363,362)
4,092,360

2009-10
£
Non-operational assets
Depreciation charged for the year
Impairment losses
Non Council assets written out to revenue
Gain on previous year impairment losses
Deferred grants amortised to revenue
Deferred grants not attributable to specific assets
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436,122
2,498,625
45,000
(74,080)
(234,134)
(440,436)
2,231,097
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4.

Leases

The Council acts as lessor in respect of land and property owned by it and leased to tenants.
The value of the income from rents associated with these agreements, and included within
the Council’s Income and Expenditure Account, is £1,263,814 for 2009-10 (£1,006,589 for
2008-09).
The gross value at 31 March 2010 in respect of land and property generating leasehold
income is £14,735,269 and the accumulated depreciation £269,632.
The Council acts as lessor for sub-leases on contract hire cars supplied to its officers. The
total cost in 2009-10 was £99,844 and after contributions from officers of £21,741, it resulted
in a charge to the Income and Expenditure Account of £78,103 (2008-09 total cost £98,290
officers contributions £22,467 and charge to Income and Expenditure Account of £75,812).
The Council also rents Cavendish House itself for operational purposes. The value of rentals
paid in respect of its responsibilities as a lessee in 2009-10 is £50,670 (£51,900 for 2008-09).
5.

Disposal of fixed assets

The losses on the fixed assets that the Council has sold for 2009-10 are shown below.
2008-09
£
(236,000)
(126,101)
(205,000)
(150,000)
(717,101)
163,200
126,101
607,544
226,410
1,123,255
406,154
6.

2009-10
£
Sale proceeds:
Dwellings
Commercial and other properties
Assets under construction
Surplus assets, held for disposal
Total sale proceeds
Carrying value:
Dwellings
Commercial and other properties
Assets under construction
Surplus assets, held for disposal
Total carrying value
Losses on disposals of fixed assets

£

(287,905)
(108,000)
0
(431,717)
(827,622)
207,001
108,000
0
615,987
930,988
103,366

Disposal of contingent assets

Contingent assets represent proceeds to the Council where a dwelling sold under the tenant’s
Right to buy is sold on within five years of the purchase from the Council. There is a statutory
calculation to claw back a proportion of the discount originally awarded to the tenant
purchasing the dwelling from the Council.
7.

Financial instruments

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:





Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.
Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments.
Re-financing risk – the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a financial
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms.
Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rate movements.
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Overall Procedures for Managing Risk
The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets, and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk
management are set out through a legal framework set out in the Local Government Act 2003
and the associated regulations. These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice
and Investment Guidance issued through the Act. Overall these procedures require the
Council to manage risk in the following ways:






by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice;
by the adoption of a Treasury Management Strategy and treasury management
clauses within its financial regulations;
by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years
limiting:
o The Council’s overall borrowing;
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;
o Its maximum and minimum for exposures of the maturity structure of its debt;
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.
by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for
both investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the
Government Guidance;

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Council’s annual Council
Tax setting budget or before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are
reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach
to managing risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument exposure. Actual
performance is also reported at least annually to Members.
The annual treasury management strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was
approved by Council on 23 February 2009 and is available on the Council website. The key
issues within the strategy were:




The Authorised Limit for 2009-10 was set at £36,000,000. This is the maximum limit of
external borrowings or other long term liabilities.
The Operational Boundary was expected to be £33,000,000. This is the expected limit of
external borrowings or other long term liabilities.
The maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at 100% and
30% based on the Council’s net debt.

These policies are implemented by the Treasurer. The Council maintains written principles
for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash through Treasury
Management Practices; these are a requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed
periodically.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the Council’s customers.
This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits
are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in
accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poors Credit Ratings Services. The
Annual Investment Strategy also considers maximum amounts and time limits in respect of
each financial institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless
they meet the minimum requirements of the investment criteria outlined above. Additional
selection criteria are also applied after that. Details of the Investment Strategy can be found
on the Council’s website, the key areas of the Investment Strategy are that the minimum
criteria for investment counterparties include:
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Minimum credit rating of A (Fitch or equivalent rating).
UK institutions provided with support from the UK Government.
Building societies limited by value based on their asset size.

In addition to adopting the minimum criteria above the Council agreed that the Borough
Treasurer restrict investment activity to those counterparties considered of higher quality until
the market returned ‘normal’ conditions.
The Council had no exposure to credit risk during 2009-10 or 2008-09 as there were no
Council funds invested in the market.
No breaches of the Council’s counterparty criteria occurred during the financial year and the
Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of it’s counterparties in
relation to deposits.
The Council is exposed to credit risk from non-payment by trade debtors and the maximum
risk is calculated and set aside as a bad debt provision, held in the Balance Sheet. The bad
debt provision is based on the age of the debt and is weighted to reflect the recoverability of
the debts owed to the Council.
The provision is reviewed annually to ensure that it reflects the experience as well as the
history of default and uncollectability:
Debt outstanding
Less than 3 months
Three months to six months
Six months to one year
More than one year

Default and uncollectability provision
50%
75%
100%
100%

The Council does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £661,506 of the
£1,038,594 balance owed by trade debtors for 2009-10 is past its due date for payment
(£488,520 of the £1,594,998 for 2008-09). The past due amount can be analysed by age as
follows:
31 March 2009
£
232,339
40,407
74,176
141,598
488,520
346,844
71%

Debt outstanding
Less than 3 months
Three months to six months
Six months to one year
More than one year
Total
Provision for bad and doubtful debt
Percentage of provision

31 March 2010
£
288,165
89,871
86,736
196,734
661,506
494,956
75%

Liquidity risk
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above
(setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of treasury and investment
strategy reports), as well as a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by
the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is available when it is needed.
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Market to cover any day to day
cash flow need, and whilst the PWLB provides access to longer term funds, it also acts as a
lender of last resort to councils (although it will not provide funding to a council whose actions
are unlawful). The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual
expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to
meet its commitments under financial instruments.

Page 22

Barrow Borough Council

Refinancing and maturity risk
The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow
procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to
the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they
mature. This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term financial liabilities and longer
term financial assets.
The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed
on investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to
address this risk. The Council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main
risks and the Borough Treasurer addresses the operational risks within the approved
parameters. This includes:



monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through
either new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and
monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for
the Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments
provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and minimum
limits for fixed interest rates maturing in each period (approved by Council in the Treasury
Management Strategy):
31 March
2009
Restated
£
(4,000,000)
(6,000,000)

PWLB loans
Over 20 but not over 25 years
Over 25 but not over 30 years

£
(4,000,000)
(6,000,000)

(19,000,000)

Over 40 but not over 45 years

(12,389,734)

(29,000,000)

31 March
2010

Approved
maximum
limits
£
100% fixed if
maturity
structure 10
years and
above

Approved
minimum
limits
£

0%

(22,389,734)

All trade and other payables (£4,356,675; £3,704,516 for 2008-09) are due to be paid in less
than one year and are not shown in the table above.
Market risk
Interest rate risk - The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowing and
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending
on how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods.
For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:





borrowing at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Income and
Expenditure Account will rise;
borrowing at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on
revenue balances);
investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Income and
Expenditure Account will rise; and
investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue
balances).

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on
fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Income and Expenditure Account or Statement
of Total Realised Gains and Losses. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on
variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Income and Expenditure
Account and affect the General Fund balance, subject to influences from Government grants.
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Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments will be reflected in the Statement of
Total Realised Gains and Losses, unless the investments have been designated as Fair
Value through the Income and Expenditure Account, in which case gains and losses will be
posted to the Income and Expenditure Account.
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury
Management Strategy draws together Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its
expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this
Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable
interest rate exposure. The Borough Treasurer will monitor market and forecast interest rates
within the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling
interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments
may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term returns, similarly the drawing of
longer term fixed rates borrowing would be postponed.
The risk of interest rate loss is partially mitigated by Government grants payable on financing
costs.
For 2009-10 (and 2008-09) the Council did not hold any variable rate borrowings or
investments. The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the maximum proportion of
borrowings and investments that may be held in variable rate instruments.
For 2009-10 (and 2008-09) the Council held fixed rate borrowings with the Public Works
Loans Board and short-term fixed rate investments.
If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial
effect would be to decrease the fair value of fixed rate borrowing liabilities by £3,432,650 to a
fair value of £19,574,327 for 2009-10.
The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would increase the fair value of fixed rate
borrowing liabilities by £4,463,167 to a fair value of £27,470,144 for 2009-10.
Price risk - The Council does not invest in equity shares or marketable bonds and thus has
no exposure to loss arising from movements in the stock markets.
Foreign exchange risk - The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, therefore there is no exposure to loss arising from movements in the
exchange rates.
Financial instruments balances
The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following
categories of financial instruments:
Long-term
31 March
2009

31 March
2010

£
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade creditors Note 37
0
Long-term borrowing principal
(29,000,000)
Accrued interest on borrowing
(633,282)
Total borrowings
(29,633,282)

£

Loans and receivables
Trade debtors Note 35
Total investments

0
0
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Current
31 March
31 March
2009
2010
Restated
£
£

0
(22,389,734)
(489,173)
(22,878,907)

(3,704,516)
0

(4,356,675)
0

(3,704,516)

(4,356,675)

0
0

1,594,998
1,594,998

1,038,594
1,038,594
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Financial instruments gains and losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account and the Statement
of Total Recognised Gains and Losses in relation to financial instruments are as follows:
Financial
liabilities:
measured at
amortised
cost
£
(994,929)
0
(994,929)

2009-10

Interest payable
Interest and investment income
Net gain/(loss) for the year

Financial
liabilities:
measured at
amortised
cost
£
(1,276,500)
0
(1,276,500)

2008-09

Interest payable
Interest income
Net gain/(loss) for the year

Financial
assets:
loans and
receivables
£
0
16,558
16,558

Financial
assets:
loans and
receivables
£
0
462,405
462,405

Total

£
(994,929)
16,558
(978,371)

Total

£
(1,276,500)
462,405
(814,095)

Fair value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost
Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried in
the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the
present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments,
using the following assumptions:





For loans from the PWLB, premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been applied
to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures, the rates applied at 31
March 2010 are from 4.29% to 4.42%; 3.97% to 4.15% were applied at 31 March 2009.
No early repayment or impairment is recognised.
Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed
to approximate to fair value.
The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values calculated are as follows:
31 March 2009 Restated
Carrying
Fair value
amount
£
£
(29,633,282)
(30,993,447)
(3,704,516)
(3,704,516)
(33,337,798)
(34,697,963)
1,594,998
1,594,998

1,594,998
1,594,998

PWLB debt
Trade creditors
Total Financial Liabilities
Trade debtors
Total Loans and Receivables

31 March 2010
Carrying
Fair value
amount
£
£
(22,389,734) (23,006,977)
(4,356,675)
(4,356,675)
(26,746,409) (27,363,652)
1,038,594
1,038,594

1,038,594
1,038,594

The fair value of the financial liabilities is higher than the carrying amount because the
Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate
payable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. This
commitment to pay interest above market rates increases the amount that the Council would
have to pay if an early repayment of the loans was made.
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8.

Contribution to housing pooled capital receipts

Since the 1 April 2004 authorities are required to pay a proportion of specified housing related
capital receipts into a Government pool for redistribution. For 2009-10 the Council contributed
£243,988 to the Government pool (£235,905 for 2008-09).
This levy does not have an impact on council tax as it is funded by a transfer from usable
capital receipts in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.
9.

Retirement benefits

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers the Council offers retirement
benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the
Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.
The authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Cumbria County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that
the authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to
balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.
Transactions relating to retirement benefits
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the charge which is required to be made against council tax is based on the cash
payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Statement of
Movement on the General Fund Balance. The following transactions have been made in the
Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
during the year:
Local Government Pension
Scheme
£
2008-09
2009-10
Income and Expenditure Account
Net Cost of Services:
current service cost
past service cost
curtailment cost
Included in Net Cost of Services
Net Operating Expenditure:
- interest cost
- expected return on assets in the scheme
Included in Net Operating Expenditure
Net Charge to the Income and Expenditure Account
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance:
- reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with FRS 17

Actual amount charged for pensions in the year:
- employers' contributions payable to scheme
- retirement benefits payable to pensioners
Total actual pensions paid in the year

1,078,000
0
1,078,000

699,000
31,000
51,000
781,000

4,761,000
(3,485,000)
1,276,000
2,354,000

4,648,000
(2,679,000)
1,969,000
2,750,000

(2,354,000)

(2,750,000)

(2,354,000)

(2,750,000)

1,302,180
329,856
1,632,036

1,361,149
408,642
1,769,791

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the Income and Expenditure
Account, an actuarial loss of £9,216,000 (a gain of £1,461,000 in 2008-09) was included in
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the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL). The cumulative amount of
actuarial gains and losses recognised in the STRGL is a loss of £12,918,000 at 31 March
2010; a loss of £3,696,000 at 31 March 2009.
Assets and liabilities in relation to retirement benefits
The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the Council at 31
March are as follows:

Present Value of the scheme liabilities:
1 April
Prior year contributions to the scheme
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme members
Actuarial (gains) and losses
Benefits paid
Past service costs
Curtailment costs
31 March

Local Government Pension
Scheme
2008-09
2009-10
£
£
79,108,000
66,650,000
0
(6,000)
1,078,000
699,000
4,761,000
4,648,000
371,000
370,000
(15,111,000)
18,837,000
(3,557,000)
(3,424,000)
0
31,000
0
51,000
66,650,000
87,856,000

Fair Value of the scheme assets:
1 April
Expected return on assets
Actuarial gains and (losses)
Employer contributions
Contributions by scheme members
Benefits paid
31 March

Local Government Pension
Scheme
2008-09
2009-10
£
£
56,171,000
44,445,000
3,485,000
2,679,000
(13,650,000)
9,621,000
1,625,000
1,770,000
371,000
370,000
(3,557,000)
(3,424,000)
44,445,000
55,461,000

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return in the respective
markets.
The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £12,300,000 (£10,165,000 in 2008-09).
Scheme history
All in £’s
Present Value of
liabilities
Fair Value of
assets
Scheme deficit

2005-06*

2006-07 As
Revised

2007-08 As
Revised

2008-09

2009-10

74,245,000

72,669,000

79,108,000

66,650,000

87,856,000

55,540,000

57,379,000

56,171,000

44,445,000

55,461,000

18,705,000

15,290,000

22,937,000

22,205,000

32,395,000

* The Council has elected not to restate the fair value of assets for 2005-06 as permitted by
FRS17.
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long term to pay
retirement benefits. The net liability of £32,395,000 at 31 March 2010 (£22,205,000 at 31
March 2009) has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the
Balance Sheet.
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However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the
Council remains healthy as it will be made good by increased contributions over the
remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary.
The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme in the
year to 31 March 2011 is £1,795,140.
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels etc.
The liabilities have been assessed by Mercer Human Resources Consulting Limited, an
independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Cumbria County Council fund being based on
the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2007.
The main assumptions used in their calculations have been:

Rate of inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement grant

Local Government
Pension Scheme
2008-09
2009-10
3.3%
3.3%
5.05%
5.05%
3.3%
3.3%
7.1%
5.6%
50%
50%
Local Government
Pension Scheme
2008-09
2009-10

Expected rate of return on assets:
- Equities
- Government Bonds
- Other Bonds
- Property
- Cash /Liquidity
- Other
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners – men
– women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners – men
– women

7.5%
4.0%
6.0%
6.5%
0.5%
7.5%

7.5%
4.5%
5.2%
6.5%
0.5%
7.5%

21.2
24.0
22.2
25.0

21.2
24.1
22.2
25.0

The scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion to the total assets
held:

Equities
Government Bonds
Other Bonds
Property
Cash / Liquidity
Other
Total

31 March 2009
%
49.7
20.5
8.9
6.3
2.3
12.3
100

31 March 2010
%
53.1
20.4
9.8
5.8
2.3
8.6
100
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History of experience gains and losses
The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2009-10 can be
analysed into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31
March 2010:

%

2006-07
as revised
%

2007-08
as revised
%

12.9

0.6

(1.0)

0

2005-06
Differences
between
the
expected and actual return on
assets
Experience gains and loses on
liabilities
10.

2008-09

2009-10

%

%

(5.6)

(30.7)

17.3

0.4

0

0

General Government grants

These are Government grants that are not attributable to specific services. The grants for
2009-10 that the Council received are shown below.
2008-09
£
(1,086,006)
(2,809,693)
(13,635)
0
(3,909,334)
11.

Revenue Support Grant
Area Based Grant
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive
Housing Planning Delivery Grant
Total

2009-10
£
(1,688,639)
(3,485,181)
(25,940)
(73,000)
(5,272,760)

Members allowances

The Council has 36 councillors, the details of allowances and expenses are:
2008-09
£
81,644
33,106
13,646
128,396

2009-10
£
82,940
34,376
18,945
136,261

Basic allowance
Extra responsibility allowance
Expenses
Total

There is also a Mayoral honorarium for their year in office for mayors’ duties and civic
receptions. For 2009-10 the honorarium is £5,080 (£5,020 for 2008-09).
12.

Senior Officer remuneration

Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment No.2) (England) Regulations 2009
introduced a new legal requirement to increase transparency and accountability in Local
Government for reporting remuneration of Senior Employees.
The number of employees which includes all Senior Officers, whose remuneration excluding
employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 were:
Remuneration band
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£95,000 - £99,999

2008-09 Restated
Number of employees
1
1
1
1

2009-10
Number of employees
1
0
2
1
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The following table sets out the above Senior Officers emoluments for 2009-10 and the
comparative year, 2008-09 below:
2009-10

Post title

Chief Executive
Director of Corporate
Services
Director of
Regeneration and
Community Services
Borough Treasurer

Salary and
allowances

Benefits
in kind

£
99,645

£
0

Total
remuneration
excluding
pension
contributions
£
99,645

72,178

0

66,159
54,592
292,574

£
23,915

Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions
£
123,560

72,178

17,323

89,501

4,453

70,612

15,845

86,457

6,002
10,455

60,594
303,029

14,002
71,085

74,596
374,114

Pension
contributions

2008-09

Post title

Chief Executive
Director of Corporate
Services
Director of
Regeneration and
Community Services
Borough Treasurer

Salary and
allowances

Benefits
in kind

£
99,540

£
0

Total
remuneration
excluding
pension
contributions
£
99,540

71,248

0

65,308
54,592
290,688

£
22,894

Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions
£
122,434

71,248

16,387

87,635

4,384

69,692

14,989

84,681

5,900
10,284

60,492
300,972

14,576
68,846

75,068
369,818

Pension
contributions

The allowances include car subsidy, telephone and local election allowance. The benefits in
kind relate to lease cars.
13.

Audit costs

In 2009-10 the Council incurred the following fees relating to external audit:
2008-09
£
117,166
40,270
1,150
0
158,586
14.

Fees payable to the Audit Commission:
For external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor
For the certification of grants and claims
National Fraud Initiative
Other services provided by the Audit Commission
Total

2009-10
£
118,821
45,250
2,490
0
166,561

Value Added Tax

There is £919 of irrecoverable VAT within the Central Services to the Public, Net Cost of
Services line, relating to the VAT element of Officer and Member mileage claims; £2,458 for
2008-09. From September 2009 the Council has introduced the requirement for petrol
receipts with mileage claims and the VAT element has been recovered.
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15.

Related parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties. These are
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be
controlled or influenced by the Council.
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have restricted
another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.
Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council. It is
responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides
the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the
transactions that the Council has with other parties. Details of transactions with government
departments are set out in Notes 10, 54 and 58.
During 2009-10 the Council distributed the Working Neighbourhood Fund, Safer Stronger
Community Fund and Inspiring Communities allocations from Central Government. The
organisations that have received funding are as follows:
Age Concern
Ark Education
ASDAN Ltd
Barracudas Ltd
Barrow AFC Ltd
Barrow Borough Sports Council
Barrow Youth Inclusion Project
Brathay Trust
Business Against Crime South Lakes Partnership
Connexions Cumbria
Cumbria Constabulary
Cumbria County Council
Cumbria CVS
Dare Dance
Furness Academy
Furness Enterprise
Hindpool Community Base
Inside Out
Lancaster University
Signal Films
Victim Support
The Council provides material financial assistance to a number of local organisations, some
of which are voluntary organisations and others provide services on behalf of the Council:
2008-09
£
97,030
14,310
39,305
25,000
175,645

2009-10
£
Voluntary organisations
Barrow Citizens Advice Bureau
Barrow and District Disability Association
Providing services on behalf of the Council
Furness Enterprise Ltd
West Lakes Renaissance
Total

99,280
14,660
40,485
25,000
179,425

26 Senior Council Officers and all 36 Members were asked to declare any direct financial
relationships, other than remuneration, with the authority.
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For 2009-10 there were 4 members receiving housing benefit as a private landlord, 1
members business received rate relief and there were 3 members that transacted business
as a supplier of the Council.
In 2008-09 there was 1 Senior Officer and 4 members receiving housing benefit as a private
landlord and there were 3 members that transacted business as a supplier of the Council.
The value of the transactions with the Council is shown below.
2008-09
£
3,650
39,408
0
95,153
138,211
16.

2009-10
£
Senior Officers
Received housing benefit as a private landlord
Members
Received housing benefit as a private landlord
Received business rate relief
Traded with the Council as a supplier

0
168,647
3,104
4,210
175,961

Other items of Income and Expenditure

The Council does not currently have any transactions relating to acquired or discontinued
operations, foreign currency translation or research and development.
17.
Explanation of the significance of the Statement of Movement on the General
Fund Balances
The Income and Expenditure Account discloses the income receivable and expenditure
incurred in running the Council for the year. The surplus or deficit achieved on the Income
and Expenditure Account represents the amount by which income is greater than or less than
expenditure.
However, the items of income and expenditure that are required to be credited or charged to
the General Fund and which therefore must be taken into account in determining the
Council’s budget requirement and in turn its Council Tax demand is determined by statute
and non-statutory practices rather than in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP).
The surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account is the best measure of the
Council’s financial result for the year in accordance with UK GAAP, the movement on the
General Fund Balance is also an important aspect of the Council’s stewardship.
To arrive at the Movement on the General Fund Balance it is necessary to include the
following areas:




Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be
excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year.
Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required to be included
by statute when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year.
Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are required to be taken into account
when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year.

The summation of these items is the net effect of statutory provisions that specify the net
expenditure that authorities need to take into account when setting local taxes. This net
expenditure is applied to the surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account to
arrive at the Movement on the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory and nonstatutory proper practices.
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18.
Breakdown of reconciling items in the Statement of Movement on the General
Fund Balance
The amounts in addition to the Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit for the year
that are required by statute and non-statutory proper practices to be charged or credited to
the General Fund in determining the movement on the General Fund Balance are as follows:
Previous
Year
Restated
£
(1,466,433)
(16,023,975)
0
(1,018,295)
2,363,362
507,522
(1,569,865)
1,534,862
(406,155)
3,258
(2,354,000)

241,073
(74,372)
(18,263,018)
813,984
(235,905)
1,223,263
1,632,035

3,433,377
120,557
(125,882)
1,032,633
1,027,308
(13,802,333)

Current Year
£
(2,346,570)
(3,142,922)
1,436,701
(72,180)
598,719
440,436

Depreciation of fixed assets
Impairment of fixed assets Note 25
Gain on previous impairment loss Note 25
Assets written down to revenue
Deferred grants amortised to revenue
Deferred grants fully released
Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital
(2,287,990)
Under Statute (REFFCUS) Note 28
Grant associated with REFFCUS Note 28
2,268,100
Net loss on sale of fixed assets
(103,366)
Net gain on sale of contingent assets
50,678
Net charges made for retirement benefits in
(2,750,000)
accordance with FRS 17 Note 9
Differences between amounts charged to
income and expenditure for premiums and
241,073
discounts and the charge for the year
determined in accordance with statute
Council Tax adjustment Note 46
6,462
Total to be excluded from Income and
Expenditure account
Minimum revenue provision for the
1,105,260
repayment of debt Note 29
Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts to
(243,988)
meet payments to the Housing Capital
Receipts Pool Note 8
Capital expenditure charged to revenue
315,482
Employer's contributions payable to the
Superannuation Pension Fund and
1,769,791
retirement benefits payable direct to
pensioners Note 9
Total to be included in Income and
Expenditure account
HRA balance Page 52
(22,918)
Transfers to or from the Major Repairs
493,289
Reserve
Net transfer to or from earmarked
1,876,125
reserves Note 47
Total movement in reserves
Net additional amount required to be credited to the
General Fund balance for the year
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2,946,545

2,346,496
(367,818)
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19.

Movement on operational fixed assets
Council
dwellings
£

Balance sheet value
At 31 March 09
80,370,912
Reclassification
(60,000)
of assets
Items written
0
down to revenue
Assets written out
0
at end of useful
economic life
Reversal of a
previous
1,361,557
impairment loss
1/4/09
Revaluation gain
1,914,309
1/4/09
Impairment loss
(252,642)
1/4/09
Eliminate
depreciation on
(1,561,600)
revaluation 1/4/09
Impairment loss
0
on commissioning
Acquisitions in
0
year
Enhancements in
1,791,215
year
Disposals in year
(207,001)
83,356,750
At 31 March 10
Depreciation
At 31 March 09
0
Reclassification
0
of assets
Assets written out
0
at end of useful
economic life
Charged in the
(1,561,600)
year
Eliminate
1,561,600
depreciation on
revaluation 1/4/09
0
At 31 March 09
Net Book Value
80,370,912
at 31 March 09
Net Book Value
83,356,750
at 31 March 10
Estimated useful
economic life

30 years

Land and
buildings
£

Equipment
£

Infrastructure
£

Community
assets
£

Total
£

43,591,465

3,514,218

2,001,323

9,516,351

138,994,269

302,920

(42,488)

42,488

(54,370)

188,550

0

0

0

(27,180)

(27,180)

0

(128,838)

0

0

(128,838)

1,064

0

0

0

1,362,621

247,193

0

0

0

2,161,502

(130,358)

0

0

(15,000)

(398,000)

(182,780)

0

0

0

(1,744,380)

(494,204)

0

0

0

(494,204)

0

385,958

0

0

385,958

1,056,787

9,145

0

385,597

3,242,744

0
44,392,087

0
3,737,995

0
2,043,811

0
9,805,398

(207,001)
143,336,041

0

(1,315,777)

(123,947)

(50,046)

(1,489,770)

0

42,488

(42,488)

0

0

0

128,838

0

0

128,838

(1,192,292)

(761,224)

(66,438)

(38,307)

(3,619,861)

182,780

0

0

0

1,744,380

(1,009,512)

(1,905,675)

(232,873)

(88,353)

(3,236,413)

43,591,465

2,198,441

1,877,376

9,466,305

137,504,499

43,382,575

1,832,320

1,810,938

9,717,045

140,099,628

5-75 years

3-50 years

3-50 years

20-30 years
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20.

Movement on non-operational fixed assets
Commercial
and other
properties
£

Balance sheet value
At 31 March 09
Eliminate depreciation
from 2008-09
reclassification
Reclassification of
assets
Items written down to
revenue
Reversal of a previous
impairment loss
1/4/09
Revaluation gain
1/4/09
Impairment loss
1/4/09
Eliminate depreciation
on revaluation 1/4/09
Impairment loss on
commissioning
Acquisitions in year
Enhancements in year
Disposals in year
At 31 March 10
Depreciation
At 31 March 09
Eliminate depreciation
from 2008-09
reclassification
Charged in the year
Eliminate depreciation
on revaluation 1/4/09
At 31 March 10
Net Book Value at 31
March 09
Net Book Value at 31
March 10
Estimated useful
economic life

£

Surplus
assets, held
for disposal
£

15,739,045

10,580,565

8,182,464

34,502,074

0

(14,660)

0

(14,660)

2,507,769

(2,756,319)

60,000

(188,550)

(45,000)

0

0

(45,000)

74,080

0

0

74,080

48,967

0

0

48,967

(412,589)

(107,122)

(62,763)

(582,474)

(128,967)

0

0

(128,967)

(2,209,485)

0

0

(2,209,485)

0
619,449
(108,000)
16,085,269

380,000
3,221,037
0
11,303,501

964,350
538,477
(615,987)
9,066,541

1,344,350
4,378,963
(723,987)
36,455,311

0

(14,660)

0

(14,660)

0

14,660

0

14,660

(436,122)

0

0

(436,122)

128,967

0

0

128,967

(307,155)

0

0

(307,155)

15,739,045

10,565,905

8,182,464

34,487,414

15,778,114

11,303,501

9,066,541

36,148,156

5-50 years

Not applicable

Not applicable

Assets under
construction

Total
£

Depreciation of all fixed assets is calculated to write down the value of an asset less its
residual value over the economic life of that asset. Depreciation is calculated on a straight
line basis and charged to the appropriate revenue service. The indication of estimated useful
economic life excludes land held as an asset which is held at 999 years, or in perpetuity.
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21.

Summary of movement on fixed assets

Balance sheet value
At 31 March 09
Eliminate depreciation from
2008-09 reclassification
Reclassification of assets
Items written down to
revenue
Assets written out at end of
useful economic life
Reversal of a previous
impairment loss 1/4/09
Revaluation gain 1/4/09
Impairment loss 1/4/09
Eliminate depreciation on
revaluation 1/4/09
Impairment loss on
commissioning
Acquisitions in year
Enhancements in year
Disposals in year
At 31 March 10
Depreciation
At 31 March 09
Eliminate depreciation from
2008-09 reclassification
Reclassification of assets
Assets written out at end of
useful economic life
Charged in the year
Eliminate depreciation on
revaluation 1/4/09
At 31 March 09
Net Book Value at 31 March
09
Net Book Value at 31
March 10

Operational
assets
£

Non-operational
assets
£

Total fixed
assets
£

138,994,269

34,502,074

173,496,343

0

(14,660)

(14,660)

188,550

(188,550)

0

(27,180)

(45,000)

(72,180)

(128,838)

0

(128,838)

1,362,621

74,080

1,436,701

2,161,502
(398,000)

48,967
(582,474)

2,210,469
(980,474)

(1,744,380)

(128,967)

(1,873,347)

(494,204)

(2,209,485)

(2,703,689)

385,958
3,242,744
(207,001)
143,336,041

1,344,350
4,378,963
(723,987)
36,455,311

1,730,308
7,621,707
(930,988)
179,791,352

(1,489,770)

(14,660)

(1,504,430)

0

14,660

14,660

0

0

0

128,838

0

128,838

(3,619,861)

(436,122)

(4,055,983)

1,744,380

128,967

1,873,347

(3,236,413)

(307,155)

(3,543,568)

137,504,499

34,487,414

171,991,913

140,099,628

36,148,156

176,247,784

Page 36

Barrow Borough Council

22.

Reclassification of fixed assets

The movements between asset classifications are summarised below, these are the values
as at 1 April 2009.
Operational assets
Asset
classification

Demolished flats

Non-operational assets

Council
dwellings

Land
and
buildings

Equipment

Infrastructure

Community
assets

Commercial
and other
properties

Assets
under
construction

Surplus
assets

Total

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

60,000

0

(60,000)

Arches

(60,000)

Car parks

362,920

Footpath lighting

60,000
(42,488)

0
(54,370)

Construction land
Industrial units
Office building

23.

302,920

(42,488)

42,488

(54,370)

54,370

0

(1,039,110)

1,039,110

0

2,733,196

(2,733,196)

0

753,683

(753,683)

2,507,769

(2,756,319)

Fixed assets written down to revenue

A number of assets have been written down to revenue to remove them from the Council’s
asset base. This occurs when an asset is identified as not being owned by the Council,
although historically it has been added into the Council’s Asset Register, or when the title has
been transferred and the Council’s Asset Register has not been updated.
The movements are summarised below:
Asset classification
Community assets – rented allotment sites
Commercial and other properties – adopted highway
Net movement
24.

Written down to revenue
£
(27,180)
(45,000)
(72,180)

Fixed assets written out at end of life

A number of assets have been written out of the Balance Sheet and Asset Register as they
have reached the end of their useful economic life. These are equipment items that are not
suitable to re-life as they have been completely consumed through service delivery. The
accumulated depreciation is written out against the gross book value to remove the assets
from the Balance Sheet as their new book value is already zero.
25.

Revaluation and impairment of fixed assets

Where on revaluation there has been an increase over the previous carrying amount, a
revaluation gain has occurred.
The increase in value is credited against any previous impairment charged to the Income and
Expenditure Account, where the gain has occurred from a reversion of the original cause.
Where there is no previous impairment to reverse, the revaluation gain is credited to the
Revaluation Reserve.
Where on revaluation there has been a decrease over the previous carrying amount, an
impairment loss has occurred. All of the impairment losses relate to a decline in market value
either on revaluation or on commissioning of the asset into use.
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The decrease in value is charged against any previous revaluation gains held in the
Revaluation Reserve on an individual asset basis. Where there is a nil balance in the
Revaluation Reserve, the decrease is charged in the Income and Expenditure Account.
Revaluation
Reserve
£
Reversal of a previous impairment loss at 1/4/09
Council dwellings
Operational land and buildings
Commercial and other properties
Total of reversed impairment
Revaluation gains at 1/4/09
Council dwellings
1,914,309
Operational land and buildings
247,193
Commercial and other properties
48,967
2,210,469
Total of revaluation gains
Impairment loss at 1/4/09
Council dwellings
(149,073)
Operational land and buildings
(95,585)
Community assets
(3,250)
Commercial and other properties
(239,428)
Assets under construction
(53,905)
Surplus assets
0
Impairment loss on commissioning assets into use
Operational land and buildings
0
Commercial and other properties
0
(541,241)
Total of impairment losses
1,669,228
Total
Asset classification

26.

Income and
Expenditure Account
£
1,361,557
1,064
74,080
1,436,701

Total
£
1,361,557
1,064
74,080
1,436,701
1,914,309
247,193
48,967
2,210,469

(103,569)
(34,773)
(11,750)
(173,161)
(53,217)
(62,763)

(252,642)
(130,358)
(15,000)
(412,589)
(107,122)
(62,763)

(494,204)
(2,209,485)
(3,142,922)
(1,706,221)

(494,204)
(2,209,485)
(3,684,163)
(36,993)

Valuation information

The last full valuation of Council assets was undertaken at the 1 April 2008. The Housing
Revenue Account assets have been subsequently revalued at the 1 April 2009 and a number
of other assets have been revalued both at 1 April 2009 and as they have been
commissioned into use.
All valuations are performed by external valuers and the certified values used in these
accounts were prepared by Mr R Bulger from the Valuation Office Agency and Mr S Adams of
Peill and Company, both Fellows of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; and Mr M
Messenger from Norfolk Property Services, Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors.
Valuation certificates
Valuation Office Agency
Valuation Office Agency
Peill and Company
Norfolk Property Services
Norfolk Property Services
Total

Valued as at
1 April 2009
1 April 2008
1 April 2008
1 April 2008
Date commissioned into use during 2009-10
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Operational assets

Council
dwellings
£
0

Land and
buildings
£
35,384,217

Community
assets
£
0

£
35,384,217

5,971,786
1,454,950

72,000
0

6,043,786
83,287,486

95,840

0

95,840

42,906,793

72,000

124,811,329

Assets under
construction

Surplus
assets

Total

£
0

£
0

£
225,000

273,000
0

321,400
0

16,083,200
665,000

0

0

1,353,900

273,000

321,400

18,327,100

Valued at historic cost
Valued at current value as at:
1 April 2008
0
1 April 2009
81,832,536
Date commissioned into
0
use during 2009-10
81,832,536
Total
Commercial
and other
properties
£
Valued at historic cost
225,000
Valued at current value as at:
1 April 2008
15,488,800
1 April 2009
665,000
Date commissioned into
1,353,900
use during 2009-10
17,732,700
Total
Non-operational assets

Total

All asset values shown in the Balance Sheet are net of depreciation. Council dwellings are
included at their Existing Use Value – Social Housing Value. Operational assets are included
at the lower of net current replacement value or net realisable value in existing use apart from
specialised property which is included at depreciated replacement cost. Non-operational
assets are included at the lower of net current replacement value or net realisable value.
Infrastructure assets, equipment and community assets are included at historical cost. Assets
under construction are held at cost as non-operational assets until they are commissioned.
During 2008-09 the Council assets suffered a significant impairment loss caused by the fall in
prices in the property market in general. Following advice from the Valuers concerned, the
impairment in value that occurred during 2008-09 has not fully abated and there is no further
impairment loss across the asset types in general. During 2009-10 some individual assets
have suffered an impairment loss when they were revalued and a number of assets have
gained in value, reversing the impairment loss from 2008-09.
27.

Capital Financing Requirement
2008-09
£
32,573,297

1,977,594
1,251,414
1,333,821
428,185
1,286,246
4,855,369
2,954,385
1,569,865
(642,407)

Opening Capital Financing Requirement
Capital investment:
Operational assets
Council dwellings
Land and buildings
Equipment
Community assets
Non-operational assets
Commercial and other properties
Assets under construction
Surplus assets
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital
Under Statute (REFFCUS)
Sources of finance:
Capital receipts
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2009-10
£
33,874,490

1,791,215
1,056,787
395,103
385,597
619,449
3,601,037
1,502,827
2,287,990
(300,066)

Barrow Borough Council

(9,282,528)
(1,534,862)
(2,081,905)
(813,984)
33,874,490

1,301,193
0
1,301,193

Government grants and contributions
Grants relating to REFFCUS
Balances, reserves and revenue contributions
Minimum revenue provision
Closing Capital Financing Requirement
Explanation of movements in year:
Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to
borrow for capital expenditure that was incurred
before 1 April 2008
Increase in underlying need to borrow for capital
expenditure that was incurred after 1 April 2008
Increase in Capital Financing Requirement

(6,031,350)
(2,268,100)
(1,866,439)
(1,105,260)
33,943,280

(909,972)
978,762
68,790

REFFCUS expenditure and related grants form part of the deficit on the Income and
Expenditure Account.
28.

Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute (REFFCUS)

Legislation allows some expenditure, which does not create a fixed asset, to be classified as
capital for funding purposes. This will enable the authority to use capital resources and not
impact on the Council Tax.
This type of expenditure is charged, with any related grants, to the Income and Expenditure
Account and neutralised in the Statement of Movement on General Fund Balance (SMGFB).
29.

Minimum Revenue Provision

The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is the statutory requirement for the Council to make
provision to repay external debt. The Council’s MRP policy is to provide the statutory 4% to
the General Fund Capital Financing Requirement for capital expenditure incurred before 1
April 2008 for General Fund purposes. For capital expenditure incurred after the 1 April 2008,
the provision will be based on the normal depreciation method.
The MRP for 2009-10 is £1,105,260 (£813,984 for 2008-09).
30.

Assets numbers

Operational fixed assets:
Dwellings
Arches
Artificial Pitch
Arts Centre
Car Parks
Cemetery Buildings
Conveniences
Dog Kennels
Community Centres
HRA Garages
Leisure Centre
Markets
Museums
Operational Offices
Parks Buildings
Equipment
Community Assets
Infrastructure Assets

Number as at
31 March 2009

Number as at
31 March 2010

2,735
1
1
1
14
4
8
1
12
487
1
2
1
2
4
52
98
11

2,717
0
1
1
16
4
8
1
12
487
1
1
1
2
4
58
96
12
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Non-Operational fixed assets:
Commercial and other property
Surplus assets
Assets under construction

76
142
14

79
157
13

The Arches have been transferred from operational assets to non-operational commercial and
other property during 2009-10. The Car Parks have increased in 2009-10, these were assets
under construction that have been brought into use. The Market line has reduced to reflect
the Mall transferring into non-operational commercial and other property during 2009-10.
31.

Information on major operational assets held

Net book Value
31 March 2009
£

32.

8,970,619

Town Hall

8,832,016

Park Leisure Centre

8,528,153

Forum 28

5,796,786

Dock Museum

1,814,624

Crematorium

Valuation base
Depreciated
Replacement Cost
Depreciated
Replacement Cost
Depreciated
Replacement Cost
Depreciated
Replacement Cost
Depreciated
Replacement Cost

Expected life

Net Book Value
31 March 2010
£

75 years

8,974,549

50 years

8,780,447

30 years

8,335,870

25 years

5,619,454

20 years

1,735,033

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2010 the Council was contractually committed to capital works which
amounted to £2,691,328, of which £2,301,072 is grant funded. Capital commitments at 31
March 2009 were £169,662.
31 March 2009
£
34,292
0
0
126,869
8,501
169,662
33.

Capital projects
Building refurbishment
Link Road Phase II
Environmental improvements
Retentions
Housing IT system

31 March 2010
£
2,254,313
250,000
165,507
21,508
0
2,691,328

Long-term debtors

At the Balance Sheet date the Council had the following long-term debtors:
31 March 2009
£
7,367
0
7,367

Mortgage principal
Catering contract deposit

31 March 2010
£
5,300
5,000
10,300

The outstanding mortgage principal relates to Council dwellings purchased under the Right to
Buy (RTB) scheme.
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34.

Stocks

At the Balance Sheet date the Council had the following stocks:
31 March 2009
£
11,854
11,220
7,512
30,586
35.

Tourist Information Centre
Dock Museum shop
Other stocks held for internal issue

31 March 2010
£
12,646
10,851
6,348
29,845

Debtors

At the Balance Sheet date the Council had the following debtors:
31 March 2009
Restated
£
610,511
404,706
4,945,267
1,594,998
394,341
511,050
266,176
(1,720,303)
7,006,746

31 March 2010
Council tax arrears
HRA rent arrears
Government departments
Trade debtors
Sundry debtors
Benefit overpayments
Payments in advance
Provision for bad and doubtful debt

£
530,432
327,326
5,905,841
1,038,594
249,288
545,390
239,864
(1,809,946)
7,026,789

The benefit overpayments relate to housing benefit overpaid to recipients where invoices
have been issued to recover the debt. In addition to these overpayments are also recovered
from ongoing benefit entitlement where possible. At the 31 March 2010 the overpayments
being collected from future ongoing entitlement is estimated to be £270,651 (£268,376 at 31
March 2009).
36.

Short-term borrowing

The short-term borrowing represents the interest due as at the Balance Sheet date, payable
within the next 12 months on the long-term borrowing that the Council held at the Balance
Sheet date.
37.

Creditors

At the Balance Sheet date the Council had the following creditors:
31 March 2009
Restated
£
(775,354)
(137,995)
(3,704,516)
(1,040,613)
(5,658,478)
38.

31 March 2010
Government departments
Council tax prepayments and receipts in advance
Trade creditors
Receipts in advance

£
(1,104,966)
(83,295)
(4,356,675)
(827,404)
(6,372,340)

Provisions

The Council established an early retirement provision in 2005-06. This provides for the
payment of annual amounts due to be paid following early retirements from 2005-06 onwards.
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The Council established an insurance provision in 2006-07. This provides for the payment of
potential insurance claims for which the Council is not insured; also see Contingent Liabilities
(Note 51). The movements on provisions for the year were:
2008-09
£
(66,106)
6,217
(59,889)
(632,040)
0
182,834
(449,206)
(509,095)
39.

2009-10
£
Early retirement provision
Brought forward
Provision used during the year
Insurance provision
Brought forward
Recovered from insurance claim
Provision used during the year
Total of provisions

(59,889)
6,217
(53,672)
(449,206)
(177,313)
0
(626,519)
(680,191)

Unapplied grants and grants deferred

All capital grants and contributions claimed and received in the year have been credited to an
unapplied grant accounts. Capital grants used to finance capital expenditure are transferred
to grants-deferred accounts. Amounts are released to the relevant revenue service in line
with any depreciation charged on the assets financed by those grants.
31 March 2009
£
(2,626,899)
(8,838,491)
8,444,420
(3,020,970)
31 March 2009
£
(33,692,522)
2,363,362
507,522
(8,189,959)
(39,011,597)
40.

Unapplied grants
Balance brought forward
Grants receivable for the year
Grants applied to finance capital expenditure
Balance carried forward
Deferred grants
Balance brought forward
Grants amortised to revenue
Grants fully released to revenue
Grants applied to finance capital expenditure
Balance carried forward

31 March 2010
£
(3,020,970)
(5,112,248)
5,791,092
(2,342,126)
31 March 2010
£
(39,011,597)
598,719
440,436
(5,791,092)
(43,763,534)

Deferred liabilities

A property that the Council acquired by compulsory purchase order during 2007-08 was sold
during 2009-10. The owner of the property cannot be traced, so the funds are held as a
deferred liability which will be held for the statutory period of 12 years.
41.

Reserves and Balances

The Council keeps a number of reserves and balances in the Balance Sheet.
Some reserves are required to be held for statutory reasons, some are needed to comply with
proper accounting practice, and others have been set up voluntarily to earmark resources for
future spending plans. Balances are held separate for statutory reasons.
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The movements on reserves and balances for the year were:

Reserve or
Balance
Capital
Adjustment
Account
Note 42

Balance
1 April 2009
Restated
£
(69,836,971)

Net Movement
in Year

Balance
31 March 2010

£

£

1,465,313

(68,371,658)

Purpose of Reserve or
Balance
Store of capital resources
set aside to meet past
expenditure
Balancing account to allow
for differences in statutory
requirements and proper
accounting practices for
borrowings and
investments
Store of gains on
revaluation of fixed assets
not yet realised through
sales

Financial
Instruments
Adjustment
Account
Note 43

664,718

(241,073)

423,645

Revaluation
Reserve
Note 44

(29,268,854)

(900,457)

(30,169,311)

(1,572,673)

(336,313)

(1,908,986)

Proceeds of fixed asset
sales available to meet
future capital investment

Usable
Capital
Receipts
Reserve
Note 45
Pensions
Reserve
Note 9
Major
Repairs
Reserve
Page 57
Note 15

22,199,154

10,196,209

32,395,363

Balancing amount to allow
inclusion of Pensions
Liability in the Balance
Sheet

0

(411,486)

(411,486)

Resources available to
meet capital investment in
council housing

General
Fund
Balance
Page 14

(1,971,258)

(292,047)

(2,263,305)

HRA
Balance
Page 52

(845,980)

22,919

(823,061)

Collection
Fund
Adjustment
Account
Note 46
Earmarked
Reserves
Note 47
Total

A prudent level of balance
maintained for potential
emergency/ extraordinary
expenditure on non-housing
services
A prudent level of balance
maintained for potential
emergency/ extraordinary
expenditure on Council
housing services

52,185

(6,462)

45,723

Balance of council tax
surplus or deficit to be
returned to revenue in
future years

(3,005,972)

(1,876,126)

(4,882,098)

Revenue set aside for
specific purposes

(83,585,651)

7,620,477

(75,965,174)

The movement notes referred to in this table may sometimes differ by rounding. This occurs
when transactions are shown separately for presentation.
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42.

Movement on Capital Adjustment Account

2008-09
£
1,466,433
2,077,092
17,042,270
0
0
(2,363,362)
(507,522)
1,569,865
(1,534,862)
1,123,256
(69,235)
0
(813,984)
(642,407)
(1,092,569)
(57,225)
(2,024,680)
(1,505,467)

Depreciation of General Fund assets
Depreciation of HRA assets
Impairment of assets
Gain on previous impairment loss
Assets written down to revenue
Deferred grants amortised to revenue
Deferred grants fully released
Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute
(REFFCUS)
Grant associated with REFFCUS
Carrying value of assets on disposal
Revaluation gains for assets on disposal
Revaluation gains for assets on written down
Minimum Revenue Provision
Capital receipts used in capital financing
Grants used in capital financing
Revenue used in capital financing
Reserves used in capital financing
Conversion of current value depreciation to historic cost
depreciation

12,667,603
43.

2009-10
£
2,346,570
1,709,412
3,142,922
(1,436,701)
72,180
(598,719)
(440,436)
2,287,990
(2,268,100)
930,988
(21,333)
(34,130)
(1,105,260)
(300,066)
(240,258)
0
(1,866,439)
(713,307)
1,465,313

Movement on Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
2008-09
£
0

(249,970)

(249,970)

0

8,897

8,897

2009-10
£
Premiums from the early repayment of debt:
Deferred premiums from rescheduling during the year to be
amortised to the HRA
Differences between amounts debited/credited to the Income
and Expenditure Account and amounts payable/receivable to
be recognised under statutory provisions relating to premiums
on the early repayment of debt
Premiums from the early repayment of debt charged to the
HRA in accordance with statutory provisions
Discounts from the early repayment of debt:
Deferred discounts from rescheduling during the year to be
amortised to the HRA
Differences between amounts debited/credited to the Income
and Expenditure Account and amounts payable/receivable to
be recognised under statutory provisions relating to discounts
on the early repayment of debt
Discounts from the early repayment of debt charged to the
HRA in accordance with statutory provisions

(241,073)

11,745

(251,077)

(239,332)

(11,745)

10,004

(1,741)
(241,073)

Further details about the Council’s financial liabilities and financial assets are contained in
Note 7 and the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses Page 15.
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44.

Movement on Revaluation Reserve

2008-09
£
(33,620,580)
8,728,905
10,203,381
69,235
0
1,505,467

2009-10
£
£
(2,210,469)
0
541,241
(1,669,228)
21,333
34,130

Gains on the revaluation of fixed assets
Loss on the revaluation of fixed assets
Loss on the impairment of fixed assets
Gains written out on the disposal of fixed assets
Gains written out on the write down of fixed assets
Conversion of current value depreciation to historic
cost depreciation

713,307

(13,113,592)
45.

Movement on Usable Capital Receipts reserve

2008-09
£
(236,000)
(2,058)
(3,258)
(481,101)
642,408
235,905
155,896
46.

Proceeds from the sale of Council dwellings
Proceeds from the repayment of mortgage principal
Proceeds from the repayment of Right To Buy discount
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets
Receipts used in capital financing
Share of receipts paid to Capital Receipts Pool

Actual surplus for 2006-07 distributed in 2008-09
Actual deficit for 2007-08 distributed in 2009-10
Actual deficit for 2008-09 distributed in 2010-11
Actual deficit for 2009-10 distributed in 2011-12

2009-10
£
0
(17,077)
0
10,615
6,462

Movement on earmarked reserves

2008-09
£
(1,165,628)
132,995
(1,032,633)
48.

2009-10
£
(287,905)
(2,067)
(50,678)
(539,717)
300,066
243,988
(336,313)

Movement on Collection Fund Adjustment Account

2008-09
£
39,265
0
35,108
0
74,373
47.

(900,458)

New contributions made
Reserve used in the year

2009-10
£
(2,296,087)
419,962
(1,876,125)

Interests in companies

The Council holds no interests in companies.
49.

Analysis of net assets employed

To provide an indication of the level of resources employed in providing the main services of
the Council, the net assets employed are split between General Fund and the HRA.
Year on year the net assets employed in the General Fund and HRA have changed and this
is largely caused by the increase of £10,196,209 in the liability related to the defined benefit
pension scheme.
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2008-09 Restated
£
14,789,539
68,803,479
83,593,018
50.

2009-10
£
3,163,568
72,806,906
75,970,474

General Fund
HRA
Total net assets

Trust funds

The Council acts as an administrator of four trust funds created for charitable purposes, they
do not belong to the Council and are not included in any of the accounting statements. Their
financial information is shown in aggregation below:
2008-09
£
90,727

Assets

2009-10
£
43,781

(18,445)
26,004
7,559

Gross income
Gross expenditure
Net deficit for the year

(11,156)
16,158
5,002

One of the trust funds holds a land asset that has impaired in value leading to a reduction in
the overall assets of the trusts.
51.

Contingent liabilities

The Council is aware that there is the potential to receive claims for uninsured risks,
particularly for events in the past.
As far as possible the insurance provision (Note 38) reflects the Councils’ potential liability,
but there may remain unquantifiable liabilities.
52.

Cashflow restatement

The net cash inflow from revenue activities for 2008-09 differs from the audited Statement of
Accounts for 2008-09 as a result of restating the Collection Fund entries. The entries are
reclassified as liquid resources:

Net cash inflow from revenue activities as per Statement of Accounts 2008-09
NNDR and council tax relating to the major preceptors excluded from revenue
activities:
Restated net cash inflow from revenue activities
Net increase in other liquid resources as per Statement of Accounts 2008-09
Items now included from revenue activities
Restated net increase in other liquid resources
53.

£
(4,717,710)
(3,743,796)
(8,461,506)
104
3,743,796
3,743,900

Reconciliation to the net deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account

This reconciliation takes the deficit on the Income and Expenditure account and the Collection
Fund, which are prepared on an accruals basis, to a net cash inflow or outflow from revenue
activities.
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2008-09
Restated
£
13,856,260
(1,466,433)
(17,042,270)
0
0
2,363,362
507,522
(406,155)
3,258
(591,321)
6,218
(594,525)
(24,846)
(721,964)
(1,276,500)
462,405
4,039
(2,656,192)
(742,371)
(31,339)
0
(110,654)
(8,461,506)
54.

2009-10
£
(Surplus)/deficit for the year
Income and Expenditure account deficit for the year
Non-cash and other excluded items:
Depreciation
Impairment
Gain on previous impairment
Assets written down to revenue
Grants released to revenue
Grants released to revenue in full
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Gain on sale of contingent assets
Bad debt provision
Early retirement provision
NNDR paid from Income and Expenditure account
Festival fund
Effect of FRS17 pension accounting
Interest payable – shown elsewhere
Interest receivable – shown elsewhere
Accruals - (decrease)/increase in stocks
Accruals - (decrease)/increase in debtors
Accruals - decrease/(increase) in creditors
Accruals – (decrease)/increase in interest receivable
Accruals - decrease/(increase) in interest payable
Other items
Net movement on revenue activities

75,771
(2,346,570)
(3,142,922)
1,436,701
(72,180)
598,719
440,436
(103,366)
50,678
(323,337)
6,218
(537,817)
0
(980,209)
(994,929)
16,558
(741)
2,459,718
(4,571,925)
(2,248)
144,109
(36,547)
(7,883,883)

Analysis of capital grants received

The capital grants received by the Council on a cash basis were:
2008-09
£
0
(5,062,439)
(1,080,709)
(526,640)
0
0
0
(15,511)
0
(1,374,436)
(120,000)
(104,081)
(92,020)
(27,018)
(20,000)
(19,500)
(3,019)
(8,445,373)

North West Development Agency
West Lakes Renaissance
European Regional Development Fund
Cumbria County Council
Seaside Town Grant
Heritage Lottery
Sea Change Grant
Safer, Stronger Communities Fund
Arts Council
Housing Capital Grant
Department of Health
Big Lottery
Urban Renewal Fund
Planning Delivery Grant
Marine Fisheries Agency
Sport England
Coast Protection
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2009-10
£
(2,072,517)
(1,835,442)
(900,205)
(482,534)
(200,000)
(109,500)
(100,000)
(16,719)
(10,000)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(5,726,917)
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55.

Analysis of other capital cash receipts

The other capital cash received by the Council on a cash basis came from:
2008-09
£
(18,601)
(9,500)
(3,258)
(2,058)
(33,417)
56.

Emlyn Hughes House insurer
Furness Maritime Trust
Proceeds from the repayment of Right To Buy discount
Proceeds from the repayment of mortgage principal

Movement in cash reconciled to the movement in net debt
2008-09
Restated
£

562,131
4,901,987
(29,000,000)
(23,535,882)
4,586,891
3,745,887
(29,000,000)
(20,667,222)
2,868,660
4,024,760
(1,156,100)
0
2,868,660
57.

2009-10
£
0
0
(50,678)
(2,067)
(52,745)

2009-10
£
Balances brought forward
- Bank
- Liquid resources
- Borrowing
Total brought forward
Balances carried forward
- Bank
- Liquid resources
- Borrowing
Total carried forward
Net (increase)/decrease for the year

£

4,586,891
3,745,887
(29,000,000)
(20,667,222)
1,123,827
5,294,827
(22,389,734)

Net movement on bank
Net movement on liquid resources
Net movement on financing
Net movement for the year

(15,971,080)
4,696,142
(3,463,064)
1,548,940
6,610,266
4,696,142

Reconciliation of liquid resources to the Balance Sheet

Liquid resources are cash in hand, short-term investments and the balance of transactions
with the Government for NNDR and the major preceptors for Council Tax. At the Balance
Sheet date the Council held the following liquid resources:
31 March 2009
Restated
£
2,091
3,743,796

31 March 2010
Cash
Balance of transactions with the Government for NNDR
and the major preceptors for Council Tax

3,745,887

£
2,015
5,292,812
5,294,827
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58.

Analysis of other revenue government grants

The other revenue government grants received on a cash basis by the Council were:
2008-09
Restated
£
(21,354,908)
(7,801,311)
(2,809,693)
(1,086,006)
(922,564)
(361,969)
(364,814)
(334,128)
(351,000)
0
(70,000)
(21,750)
(56,114)
(85,000)
0
(158,157)
(45,034)
0
0
0
(13,635)
(229,000)
(36,065,083)
59.

2009-10
DWP grants for benefits
NNDR redistribution
Area Based Grant
Revenue Support Grant
Housing Capital Grant
Housing Benefit administration subsidy
Concessionary travel
Council Tax Benefit administration subsidy
Disabled Facilities Grant
Cumbria County Council
NHS Life check roll out grant
Free swimming grant
Planning Delivery Grant
Homelessness funding
Empty shops grant
West Lakes Renaissance housing market renewal
Safer, Stronger Communities Fund
Better Regulation
Regional choice grant
Mortgage rescue program
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive
Other grants where less than £25,000 received in 2009-10

£
(24,761,316)
(7,316,049)
(3,485,181)
(1,688,639)
(1,493,000)
(395,320)
(373,418)
(364,896)
(347,000)
(246,574)
(100,000)
(76,199)
(73,000)
(61,050)
(52,632)
(51,864)
(47,583)
(42,000)
(37,818)
(28,500)
(25,940)
(169,835)
(41,237,814)

Authorisation of accounts for issue

These accounts were originally authorised for issue by the Mohamad Saleh CFPA, BA, M.Litt,
Borough Treasurer on 22 June 2010 and are now authorised for issue on the 20 September 2010
after incorporating revisions from the audit.
60.

Events after the Balance Sheet date

There have been no transactions between the Balance Sheet date and the date these
accounts were authorised for issue by the Borough Treasurer that meets the definition of an
adjusting post balance sheet event.
A non-adjusting post balance sheet event has occurred concerning retirement benefits. In his
budget statement on 22 June 2010, the Chancellor announced that the Government would
start to increase public service pensions in line with the consumer price index (CPI) rather
than the retail price index (RPI), which has been the practice in the past. As a result, future
pension increases under the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme are expected to be
slightly lower, on average, than would have been the case if this change had not been made.
This change is estimated to reduce the FRS17/IAS19 benefit obligations by between 5% and
8% for most employers. The precise financial effect will be taken into account in the
FRS17/IAS19 figures for the financial year ending 31 March 2011.

Page 50

Barrow Borough Council

Supplementary Statements
HRA Income and Expenditure Account
2008-09
Restated
£
(8,098,913)
(284,759)
(394,829)
(27,540)
(8,806,041)

2,918,874
2,814,592
(3,718)
10,036,430
48,303
16,595
80,271
15,911,347

7,105,306

90,986
69,788
7,266,080
(72,800)
(3,258)
488,446
(467)
223,000

7,901,001

2009-10
£
Income
Dwelling rents
Non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities
Contribution from another Local Authority
Total Income
Expenditure
Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management
Negative HRA subsidy payable Note 3
Depreciation and impairment of dwellings
Note 4
Depreciation and impairment of other
operational HRA fixed assets
Debt Management Costs
Increase in bad debt provision
Total Expenditure
Net Cost of HRA Services as included in
the whole authority Income and
Expenditure Account
HRA share of Corporate and Democratic
Core Note 5
HRA share of Non Distributed Costs Note 6
Net Cost of HRA Services
Gain on sale of fixed assets Note 7
Gain on sale of contingent assets
Interest payable
Interest income – mortgages
Pensions interest cost and expected return
on pensions assets Note 8
(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA
services
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£

(8,336,247)
(306,845)
(318,866)
(37,140)
(8,999,098)

2,959,661
2,650,321
192,219
285,545
100,833
11,942
43,685
6,422,206

(2,754,892)

110,938
(6,578)
(2,650,532)
(35,855)
(50,678)
469,638
(261)
352,000

(1,915,688)

Barrow Borough Council

Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance
The Income and Expenditure Account shows the HRA’s actual financial performance for the
year, measured in terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve
months. However, the authority is required to raise rent on a different accounting basis, the
main difference being:


Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and
pensioners, rather than as future benefits are earned.

The HRA Balance compares the council’s spending against the rent that it raised for the year,
taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves
earmarked for future expenditure.
This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income
and Expenditure Account and the HRA Balance:
2008-09
£
7,901,001
(8,021,558)
(120,557)
(725,423)
(845,980)

2009-10
£
(Surplus) or deficit for the year on the HRA Income and
Expenditure Account
Net additional amount required by statute to be debited or
(credited) to the HRA Balance for the year Notes 1 and 2
(Increase)/decrease in the HRA Balance
HRA Balance brought forward
HRA Balance carried forward Note 16

(1,915,688)
1,938,607
22,919
(845,980)
(823,061)

Notes to the HRA
1.
Explanation of the significance of the Statement of Movement on the HRA
Balance
The HRA Income and Expenditure Account shows in more detail the income and expenditure
on HRA services included in the whole authority Income and Expenditure Account. The
surplus or deficit achieved on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account represents the
amount by which income is greater or less than expenditure.
However, the items of income and expenditure that are required to be credited or charged to
the HRA are defined in accordance with Part 6 of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (1989 Act) rather than in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP).
To arrive at the Movement on the HRA Balance it is necessary to include the following items:


Amounts included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to
be excluded when determining the Movement on the HRA Balance for the year.



Amounts not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but required to be
included by statute when determining the Movement on the HRA Balance for the year.



Transfers to or from the HRA Balance that are required to be taken into account when
determining the Movement on the HRA Balance for the year.

This net additional amount is applied to the surplus or deficit on the HRA Income and
Expenditure Account to arrive at the Movement on the HRA Balance in accordance with Part
6 of the 1989 Act.
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2.
Breakdown of reconciling items in the Statement of Movement on the HRA
Balance
The amounts in addition to the HRA Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit for the
year that are required by Part 6 of the 1989 Act to be charged or credited to the HRA in
determining the movement on the HRA Balance for the year are:
2008-09
£
(8,118,999)
0
41,570
0
72,800
3,258
241,073

(411,406)
(8,171,704)
(125,882)

249,244
26,784
150,146
(8,021,558)
3.

2009-10
£
(121,307)
1,368,251
46,769
35,901
35,855
50,678

Impairment of fixed assets
Gain on previous impairment loss
Deferred grants amortised to revenue
Deferred grants fully released
Gain on sale of HRA fixed assets
Gain on sale of contingent assets
Differences between amounts charged to
income and expenditure for premiums and
241,073
discounts and the charge for the year
determined in accordance with statute
Net charges made for retirement benefits in
(476,834)
accordance with FRS 17 Note 8
Total to be excluded from Income and
Expenditure account
Transfer to/(from) Major Repairs Reserve
493,289
Note 15
Employer's contributions payable to the
Superannuation Pension Fund and
264,932
retirement benefits payable direct to
pensioners Note 8
Capital expenditure funded by the HRA
0
Total to be included in Income and
Expenditure account
Net additional amount required by statute to be debited
or (credited) to the HRA Balance for the year

£

1,180,386

758,221
1,938,607

Negative HRA subsidy payable

The subsidy payable from the HRA to Government is composed of elements of subsidy
payable and receivable for the financial year. The breakdown comes from the general
formula in paragraph 3.1 of the General Determination of HRA Subsidy 2009-10, issued by
the DCLG.
2008-09
£
(1,825,782)
(3,061,765)
(1,951,210)
(1,141,842)
(7,980,599)
7,998,282
836
18,519
(22,237)
(3,718)

Allowance for management
Allowance for maintenance
Major Repairs Allowance
Charges for capital
Total allowance for expenditure
Rent receivable
Interest on receipts
Net subsidy payable for the year
Previous year adjustments
Total HRA subsidy in the year

2009-10
£
(1,825,817)
(3,015,529)
(2,202,701)
(880,668)
(7,924,715)
8,077,650
461
153,396
38,823
192,219

The Major Repairs Allowance includes an additional £300,000 advanced by the Government
as part of the measures to aid economic recovery.
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4.

Depreciation and impairment of dwellings

The depreciation and impairment of dwellings is an aggregation of the following:
2008-09
£
1,959,001
(41,570)
8,118,999
0
10,036,430
5.

Depreciation of dwellings
Deferred grants releases to revenue
Impairment of dwelling values
Gain on previous impairment loss

2009-10
£
1,561,600
(18,067)
103,569
(1,361,557)
285,545

HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs

These are the HRA share of corporate costs and corporate management. These are shown
in the Corporate and Democratic Costs line of the Income and Expenditure Account (Page
13) but are required by statute to be charged to the HRA.
6.

HRA share of Non Distributed Costs

These are the HRA share of depreciation and impairment of non-operational assets. These
are shown in the Non Distributed Costs line of the Income and Expenditure Account (Page
13) but are required by statute to be charged to the HRA.
7.

HRA tangible fixed asset disposals
2009-10
£

2008-09
£
(236,000)
0
163,200
0
(72,800)
8.

Sale proceeds:
Dwellings
Surplus assets
Carrying value:
Dwellings
Surplus assets
(Gains)/losses on the sale of fixed assets

(287,905)
(49,401)
207,001
94,450
(35,855)

Retirement benefits

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers the Council offers retirement
benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the
Council has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.
The authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Cumbria County Council – this is a funded scheme, meaning that the authority and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension
liabilities with investment assets.
Transactions relating to retirement benefits
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the charge which is required to be made to the HRA is based on the cash payable
in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Statement of
Movement on the HRA Balance.
The following transactions have been made in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account and
Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance during the year:
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Local Government Pension
Scheme
£
2008-09
2009-10
Restated
HRA Income and Expenditure Account
Net Cost of Services:
current service cost
Net Operating Expenditure:
- interest cost
- expected return on assets in the scheme
Included in Net Operating Expenditure
Net Charge to the Income and Expenditure Account
Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance
- reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with FRS 17

Actual amount charged against HRA Balance for pensions
in the year:
- employers' contributions payable to scheme
- retirement benefits payable to pensioners
Total actual pensions paid in the year
9.

188,406

124,834

832,000
(609,000)
223,000
411,406

830,000
(478,000)
352,000
476,834

(411,406)

(476,834)

(411,406)

(476,834)

227,587
21,657
249,244

243,087
21,845
264,932

Extraordinary and exceptional items

There were no extraordinary or exceptional items in the HRA for the year.
10.

Movement on HRA fixed assets

Council
dwellings

Other
operational
buildings

Equipment

Commercial
and other
properties

£

£

£

£

Surplus
assets,
held for
disposal
£

1,527,650

96,499

715,000

0

82,710,061

0

0

0

60,000

0

108,357

0

36,015

0

3,420,238

(97,963)

0

0

0

(350,605)

(83,094)

0

(36,015)

0

(1,680,709)

0

0

0

34,451

1,825,666

0

0

0

(94,451)

(301,452)

1,454,950

96,499

715,000

0

85,623,199

Balance sheet value
At 31 March 09 80,370,912
Reclassification
(60,000)
of assets
Revaluation
3,275,866
gain 1/4/09
Impairment
(252,642)
loss 1/4/09
Eliminate
depreciation on
(1,561,600)
revaluation
1/4/09
Enhancements
1,791,215
in year
Disposals in
(207,001)
year
At 31 March
83,356,750
10
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Depreciation
At 31 March 09
Current year
charge
Eliminate
depreciation on
revaluation
1/4/09
At 31 March
10
Net Book Value
at 31 March 09
Net Book
Value at 31
March 10
Estimated
useful
economic life

0

0

(38,584)

0

0

(38,584)

(1,561,600)

(83,094)

(28,702)

(36,015)

0

(1,709,411)

1,561,600

83,094

0

36,015

0

1,680,709

0

0

(67,286)

0

0

(67,286)

80,370,912

1,527,650

57,915

715,000

0

82,671,477

83,356,750

1,454,950

29,213

715,000

0

85,555,913

30 years

10-20 years

3 years

30 years

Not
applicable

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis and charged to the HRA.
11.

HRA Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
2008-09
£
9,010,011
1,977,594
400
25,991
0

(25,991)
(1,977,994)
9,010,011
12.

2009-10
£
9,010,011

Opening CFR
Capital investment:
Council dwellings
Other operational buildings
Operational equipment
Surplus assets

1,791,215
0
0
34,451

Sources of finance:
Government grants and other contributions
Balances and reserves
Closing CFR

(34,451)
(1,791,215)
9,010,011

Dwelling stock

The Council was responsible for managing 2,717 dwellings in 2009-10. 6 properties were
sold during 2009-10 and 12 one bedroom flats were demolished; 4 properties were sold in
2008-09.

Houses
1 bedroom
2 bedroom
3+ bedroom
Flats
1 bedroom
2 bedroom
3+ bedroom
Total
Houses
Flats
Dwelling stock

31 March 2009

Movement in year

31 March 2010

143
389
926

0
0
(4)

143
389
922

962
307
8

(13)
(1)
0

949
306
8

1,458
1,277
2,735

(4)
(14)
(18)

1,454
1,263
2,717
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13.

Vacant possession value of dwellings

Council dwellings are held in the Balance Sheet at a value that reflects the nature of
occupancy in public sector housing; this is known as the Existing Use Value of Social Housing
(‘EUV-SH’). The EUV-SH shows the economic cost to the Government of providing Council
housing at less than open market rents.
Lower public sector rent levels and the Right To Buy (‘RTB’) option for tenants are
determining factors in establishing the social housing valuation.
The valuation in the Balance Sheet of the dwellings would be higher, if the Existing Use Value
in Vacant Possession value (‘EUV-VP’) that reflects market conditions was used. The
Existing Use Value of Social Housing at the Balance Sheet date was:
31 March 2009
£
80,370,912
87,068,488
167,439,400
14.

31 March 2010
£
83,356,750

Balance Sheet value EUV-SH of dwellings
Difference of dwellings EUV-SH and EUV-VP:
economic cost
Value of dwelling stock at EUV-VP

90,303,146
173,659,896

Rent arrears

Provision has been made for the potential bad and doubtful debts of rent collection. The
arrears at the year-end together with the aggregate Balance Sheet provision and overall
percentage provisions are:
2008-09
£
404,707
300,143
74%
15.

Arrears
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Percentage of provision

2009-10
£
327,326
252,997
77%

Major Repairs Reserve

An element of the HRA subsidy receivable is the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA). The MRA
is intended to pay for major capital expenditure on Council houses. The subsidy system
allows the creation of the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) to hold the MRA until it is used for
capital expenditure.
2008-09
£
(1,959,000)
(118,091)
7,790
118,091
(1,951,210)
812,411
801,645
274,200
62,954
1,951,210
0
0

2009-10
£
MRR transfers in the year:
From HRA for depreciation of dwellings
From HRA for depreciation of other fixed assets
Difference between MRA received and
depreciation of dwellings
To HRA for depreciation of other fixed assets
MRA subsidy receivable for the year
Capital expenditure financed by MRR:
Heating and insulation
Kitchens and bathrooms
Rewires
Roofs
Total capital expenditure
Balance brought forward
Balance carried forward
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£

(1,561,600)
(147,812)
(641,101)
147,812
(2,202,701)
865,205
729,019
196,991
0
1,791,215
0
(411,486)
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16.

HRA balance

The balance carried forward on the HRA contains an element of funds committed to ongoing
housing maintenance. This occurs when the repairs and maintenance budget for the year is
not fully spent; any under-spend remains as maintenance funding.
31 March 2009
£
(845,980)
(72,000)

Total HRA balance carried forward
Of which: committed to ongoing housing maintenance
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31 March 2010
£
(823,062)
(26,629)
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Collection Fund
2008-09
Restated
£
(26,448,363)
(5,733,613)
(19,922,338)
(52,104,314)

23,977,059
4,273,918
3,869,405
19,819,743
102,595
(227,638)
550,019
52,365,101
260,787

2009-10
£
Income
Income from Council Tax
Transfers from General Fund:
- Council Tax benefits Note 1
Income collectable from business
ratepayers Note 2
Total Income
Expenditure
Precepts and demands:
- Cumbria County Council
- Barrow Borough Council
- Cumbria Police Authority
Business rate:
- Payment to national pool
- Costs of collection
Bad and doubtful debts: Note 3
- Write offs
- Provisions
Total Expenditure

£

(26,976,469)
(6,220,892)
(19,715,487)
(52,912,848)

24,541,825
4,448,390
4,053,196
19,613,699
101,788
(698,147)
932,332
52,993,083
80,235

Deficit for the year

Notes to the Collection Fund
1.

Council Tax benefits

Government regulations provide for specific reductions to be made to the Council Tax
payable by people that satisfy certain criteria, such as low income. These are Council Tax
benefits and they are mostly subsidised by central government.
2.

Income from business ratepayers

Under the arrangements for uniform business rates the Council collects business rates for its
area that are based on local rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate. The total amount,
less certain reliefs and other deductions, is paid to a central pool (the NNDR pool) managed
by central government. The pool pays back to the Council their share of the pool based on a
standard amount per head of the local adult population.
The total non-domestic rateable value at the 31 March 2010 was £48,432,285 (£48,770,384
at the 31 March 2009).
The national non-domestic rate multiplier for 2009-10 was 48.5 pence in the pound (46.2
pence in the pound for 2008-09).
A small business rate relief scheme was also introduced on the 1 April 2005 whereby,
providing certain conditions are met, occupiers of properties with a rateable value of less than
£15,000 pay a reduced rate of 48.1 pence in the pound (45.8 pence in the pound for 2008-09)
and can also qualify for rate relief.
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3.

Bad and doubtful debts

Provision has been made for the potential bad and doubtful debts of the Collection Fund.
The arrears at the year-end together with the aggregate Balance Sheet provision and overall
percentage provisions are:
31 March 2009
£
4,534,984
3,032,932
67%
1,370,212
1,074,151
78%

31 March 2010
£
Council Tax
Arrears
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Percentage of provision
Business ratepayer
Arrears
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Percentage of provision

4,009,603
2,576,734
64%
1,223,351
938,188
77%

These balances relate to the total Collection Fund transactions for the year. The council tax
transactions are apportioned between the precepting authorities and form part of the debtor
for Cumbria County Council and the Police Authority, with the Council’s share contained in
the relevant Balance Sheet headings.
4.

Collection Fund balance

The Collection Fund balance for each year belongs to the precepting authorities and is
divided against the precept for the following year. Due to the timing of setting Council Tax
each year there is two year gap between establishing the balance for the year and returning
the surplus or deficit.

Cumbria County Council
Police Authority
Barrow Borough Council

5.

Deficit for 2008-09 to be
distributed in 2010-11
£
193,691
31,989
35,107
260,787

Deficit for 2009-10 to be
distributed in 2011-12
£
59,661
9,959
10,615
80,235

Council Tax base

The Council Tax base is the number of properties against which the Council Tax can be
collected.
All properties on the valuation list are split into eight bands, A to H, and each band is given a
standard factor to convert it to a band D equivalent.
The total of the band D equivalent, net of discounts and adjustments, is then multiplied by an
assumed collection rate to give the tax base for the area.
The collection rate was assumed to be 98% for 2009-10 as it was in 2008-09.
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The Council Tax base for the year was set as:
2008-09 Band D
equivalent number of
chargeable dwellings
27
10,853
3,832
3,710
2,075
1,085
312
106
1
22,001
21,561

Band
Standard factor
Disabled reductions
A
6/9
B
7/9
C
8/9
D
9/9
E
11/9
F
13/9
G
15/9
H
18/9
Equivalent chargeable dwellings
98% of which gives the Council Tax base

2009-10 Band D
equivalent number of
chargeable dwellings
29
10,849
3,810
3,724
2,054
1,085
311
107
1
21,970
21,531

The total of the precepts and demands on the collection fund is divided by the tax base to
arrive at the band D Council Tax, and by applying the standard factor to each band the tax
figures are calculated.
2008-09 Council Tax
£
989.79
1,154.76
1,319.72
1,484.69
1,814.62
2,144.55
2,474.48
2,969.38

Band

Property value

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

Up to £39,999
£40,000 to £51,999
£52,000 to £67,999
£68,000 to £87,999
£88,000 to £119,999
£120,000 to £159,999
£160,000 to £319,999
£320,000 and over
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2009-10 Council Tax
£
1,019.97
1,189.97
1,359.96
1,529.96
1,869.95
2,209.95
2,549.93
3,059.91

Annual Governance Statement 2009-2010
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Governance – How the Council ensures that the right things are done in the
right way, for the right people at the right time, in an open, honest and
accountable manner.
Annual Statement - The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006, Regulation
4(2), requires the Council to carry out an annual review of its governance
arrangements. The outcome of this review results in the production of the
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).
Scope and responsibility
Barrow Borough Council provides a wide range of statutory and discretionary
services over a wide geographical area and is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with legal requirements and proper
standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and
used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, Barrow Borough Council is also
responsible for maintaining proper arrangements for the governance of its
affairs, which facilitate the effective exercise of the Council’s functions,
including arrangements for the management of risk.
Barrow Borough Council has completed the Corporate Governance
Compliance checklist which is consistent with the principles of the Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government framework set out in the governance
framework below.
The Council’s statutory officers are:
The Chief Executive – Head of Paid Service;
The Borough Treasurer - Section 151 Officer under the Local Government Act
1972;
The Director of Corporate Services – Monitoring Officer.
The purpose of the governance framework
The governance framework comprises the culture and values, systems and
processes used by the Council to direct and control its activities, enabling it to
engage, lead and account to the community.
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The framework allows the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether appropriate, cost effective services have
been delivered.
A significant part of the framework is the Council’s system of internal control
which is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies,
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those
risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.
The governance framework has been in place at Barrow Borough Council for
the year ended 31 March 2010, and up to the date of approval of the
accounts.

The governance framework
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) identified six principles
of corporate governance that underpin the effective governance of all local
authorities. Barrow Borough Council has used these principles when
assessing the adequacy of its governance arrangements. The main elements
that contribute to these arrangements are listed below each core principle:
Core Principle 1: focusing on the purpose of the Council and on
outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a vision for
the local area









Love Barrow, initiated by the Regeneration Publicity Team, which
represents business, tourism, the Urban Regeneration Company (Barrow
Renaissance), further and higher education and other regeneration
organizations in the Borough has effectively harnessed the Council’s and
wider communities’ development objectives with a wiser sense of
ownership
The Council’s policies, aims and objectives are well established and
monitored at various levels, for example Corporate Business plan, annual
budget process and personal performance appraisals
Regular consultation is undertaken on a range of issues
The Local Strategic Partnership provides a partnership review forum
Consultation informs our Sustainable Community Strategy which is
available to the public
The Sustainable Community Strategy and Annual Report articulate the
Council’s activities and achievements
The Medium Term Financial plan underpins corporate aims
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The Council’s budget shows financial plans at a detailed level for the
financial year
Effective Budget Monitoring takes place regularly
Cashable savings continue to exceed targets
Performance management and reporting is embedded, including quarterly
reporting to the Management Board and the Executive Committee and
review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Scrutiny reviews have delivered tangible outcomes



Core Principle 2: members and officers working together to achieve a
common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles



Established framework of forums providing Members and Officers with
diverse opportunities for effective and efficient integrated working
Members attend meetings for several strategic working groups within the
Council
Official Member spokespersons for strategic objectives
The Council’s Constitution clearly states the roles and responsibilities of
members and senior officers
Terms of reference for Committees and the Council are clearly defined in
the Constitution
Clear delegations and accountabilities are laid down in the Constitution
Joint Board meetings with Members and Management Team
Executive Committee pre-agenda meetings with Members and
Management Team
Management Team and heads of service attend monthly Management
Board
Officers are appointed with clear job descriptions
Adoption of statutory and professional standards
Compliance with Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules that
are reviewed and approved by the Council
Financial administration procedures are agreed by the Borough Treasurer
Appropriate segregation of duties and management supervision















Core Principle 3: promoting values for the authority and demonstrating
the values of good governance through upholding high standards of
conduct and behaviour







The Council’s vision and aims statement exemplifies its priorities and
values
A Member / Officer protocol is set out within the Constitution
There are codes of conduct in place for Members and Officers
There is an established and effective Standards Committee
Anti-fraud and corruption policy
The Council has adopted the Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standard with a statement of procedure to ensure that valuable cardholder
account data is always secure
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The Council participates in the Audit Commissions National Fraud
Initiative, an exercise that matches electronic data within and between
audited bodies to prevent and detect fraud; including police authorities,
local probation boards and fire and rescue authorities as well as local
councils
A whistle blowing policy is in place and available on the Council’s web site
Member and officer registers of declared interests, and hospitality and gift
register

Core Principle 4: taking informed and transparent decisions which are
subject to effective scrutiny and management of risk
















There are established and effective Overview and Scrutiny Committees,
for corporate services and for regeneration
There is an established and effective Audit Committee
There are authorising and reviewing officers appointed under the
Regulation of Investigatory Officers Act 2000 (RIPA)
Decisions taken are formally minuted
The Corporate Business plan is rolled forward and reviewed
Active risk management, including
- risk identification, registers and actions plans
- Risk Management group
- official Member spokesperson for risk management
- guidance and training on risk management for members and staff
- involvement of members in monitoring corporate risks
- consideration of risk implications in committee reports and the
decision making process.
Active health and safety arrangements, including a robust policy, official
Member spokesperson, consideration of issues at the quarterly Health and
Safety Management Board; the membership includes Management Team,
Members and other relevant officers.
Continuous managerial review of services to ensure continuous
improvement and the economic, effective and efficient use of resources
Devolved financial management arrangements, where managers are
responsible for managing their services within available resources and in
accordance with agreed policies and procedures. Elements include:- financial awareness training and working closely with service
accountants in all aspects of financial management and
administration
- monthly review by officers and the appropriate service manager of
budgetary control information, comparing expected and actual
performance
- formal quarterly budget monitoring reports to the Executive
Committee
Active performance management arrangements
A robust complaints / compliments procedure is in place and is widely
publicised
Freedom of Information requests are dealt with in accordance with
established protocols
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All committee reports and policy decisions include cross references to the
Council’s strategic objectives and key priorities supported by the
recommendations
All committee reports and policy decisions consider the potential financial,
risk management, legal, health and safety as well as equality and diversity
impact on all service users

Core Principle 5: developing the capacity and capability of members and
officers to be effective








An induction programme is in place for Officers and Members
A Member training and development programme is in operation
Deputy section 151 and Deputy Monitoring Officers are in place
Officer’s training requirements are considered at each personal
performance appraisal
Supervisor training is available
European Computer Driving Licence training is available
Members attend leadership residential training course run by the IDeA.

Core Principle 6: engaging with local people and other stakeholders to
ensure robust public accountability












The Sustainable Community Strategy is positively used
There is regular community engagement and participation both in general
and for specific community groups and services provided, including Parish
Councils
The Council has a Consultation Policy to make sure that community
consultation is effective, efficient and consistent
Community Voice is the name for the Citizens' Panel for Cumbria; Citizen's
Panels are made up of a representative sample of local residents who
have agreed to take part in research over a given period of time
Consultation for specific services, through bodies such as the Housing
Forum, tenants and residents associations, landlord forum and trade
unions are consulted on issues which affect Council staff
Talking Point, Barrow Borough Council's online service to help the people
of Barrow Borough contact us about local issues is now established
Committee and Council meetings are open to the public, with papers
available on the internet
Clear and colourful publications, including Annual Report, residents’
magazine, tenants newsletter, A-Z of Council Services
The Council engages with diverse communities within the Council’s area
through groups such as the Citizens Advice Bureau, Furness Multicultural
Forum, Barrow and District Disability Association, Age Concern and the
Blind Society
The Council continues to engage with hard to reach groups through the
following the Cumbrian forums:
- AWAZ (Cumbria), promotes the active participation of minority
ethnic people and groups
- Cumbria Disability Network
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OutREACH Cumbria, a new strategic partner working on equality
issues with the LGBT Community.
The Council uses a computerised Customer Relationship Management
system that includes a calls handling system and queuing and
appointment systems
Govmetrics is used online and at the main Council offices, this is a quick
and easy way to collect customer satisfaction using expressions:    to
find out how customers rate information and services

Review of effectiveness
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of
the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal
control. This responsibility is in practice carried out by Management Team and
managers, with the Chief Executive informing the Executive Committee of any
significant matters warranting their attention.
The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees exercise a general nonexecutive review role which in 2009-10 included specific work on:
- Corporate services: equalities performance, health and safety, and
reviewing the Council’s void commercial properties
- Regeneration and Community services: allotment management, offstreet car parking, rent collection, and waste collection and
recycling; this committee also receives Performance Information
The review of effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by
three main sources: the work of internal audit; by managers who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control
environment and also by comments made by external auditors and other
review agencies / inspectorates.
Internal audit
Barrow’s responsibility for maintaining an effective Internal Audit function is
set out in Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, as
amended. This responsibility is delegated to the Borough Treasurer. The
Internal Audit function has no operational responsibilities; this ensures that its
duties are performed impartially.
Internal Audit operates in accordance with best practice professional
standards and guidelines. It independently and objectively reviews, on a
continuous basis, the extent to which the internal control environment
supports and promotes the achievement of the Council’s objectives, and
contributes to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.
All audit reports go to the Audit Committee who review any recommendations
and monitor their implementation. Members receive a quarterly and an annual
report of internal audit activity and approve the annual risk-based audit plan
for the forthcoming year.
Internal Audit’s assessment of auditable areas has identified 73
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potential systems which cover the Council’s operations. Within the 2009-10
annual audit work schedule planned coverage amounted to 37% of systems
which related to 80% of the total risk. Against this target Internal Audit
achieved 32% of systems coverage which amounted to 77% of the total risk;
additionally a number of unplanned audit activities were undertaken.
The majority of Council systems have achieved the level of substantial
assurance. 10 systems have been classified as restricted assurance, two of
which are awaiting management responses and are therefore not currently
issued as final reports.
30 final reports have been issued with 21 reports achieving substantial
assurance, 8 with restricted assurance and 1 unqualified assurance. This
achievement demonstrates the Council’s commitment to operating within a
control environment that should minimise the risk of loss to the Authority.
Last year’s Internal Audit report identified areas of weakness in relation to
contracts let in previous financial years. These have been helpful in shaping
the amendments to the Council’s Contract Standing Orders. Assurance may
be taken that these weaknesses are being addressed.
The outcomes of Internal Audit reviews are reported to the Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis, giving Members an opportunity to understand the
Council’s compliance with key controls and to discuss any areas of concern
with the Auditors
Managers
Individual managers are responsible for establishing and maintaining an
adequate system of internal control within their own sections and for
contributing to the control environment on a corporate basis. There are a
number of significant internal control areas which are subject to review by
internal audit. All managers acknowledge their responsibilities and confirm
annually that they have implemented and continuously monitored various
significant controls. This is done on a checklist covering: management
structures and reporting lines, strategy and planning, risk management,
ethics, service delivery, performance management, policies and procedures,
and financial controls. This checklist is reviewed by the Management Team.
External auditors and other review agencies / inspectorates
External auditors are appointed to the Council by the Audit Commission.
They are required to conduct their audit work to the strictest standards as laid
down by the Audit code of Practice, which ensures that they approach the
work with the highest level of objectivity. The external auditors undertake a
series of thorough and comprehensive audits that cover matters including
financial reporting, financial stewardship and the Council’s approach to its use
of resources.
Each year the Council receives a report from its external auditor on the quality
of its financial and management administrative arrangements. The most
recent audit letter, which was presented for Members’ consideration at the
Audit Committee meeting on the 16 December 2009, indicated that the
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Council’s has arrangements in place for securing continuous improvement in
corporate governance with no significant weaknesses identified that would
prevent improvement levels being sustained.
In December 2009 the Council was advised that in findings from the Audit
Commission’s assessment of how Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council was
managing and using its resources to deliver value for money and better and
sustainable outcomes for local people it had achieved an overall Level 2
which means that the Council is judged to be performing adequately.
It was also noted that the Council’s theme score for financial reporting was
Level 3 which meant that the Council was exceeding minimum requirements
and performing well. In terms of internal controls issues within the report,
there were two areas where the auditors identified areas for improvement;
these related to strengthening the arrangements for ensuring appropriate use
of resources and ensuring that business planning could be measured against
priorities.
During 2008 the benefits service, outsourced to Liberata UK Limited in 1998,
was inspected by the Audit Commission with an assessment that the service
was poor with poor prospects for improvement. The Council has expanded its
service improvement plan for benefits to incorporate the actions identified by
the inspection. A recent audit in June 2010 noted improvements in the
revenues and benefits service. It also acknowledged improved standards due
to better contract management. Further areas for improvement were
mentioned. The Barrow/ Liberata Improvement Board continues to work
through the recommendations to further enhance the service.
A cross cutting review of health inequalities which was completed during
2007-08 involving local government and health organisations was still relevant
in 2009-2010. The report concluded that organisations in Cumbria have a
strong commitment to tackling health inequalities and an increasing focus on
collaborative action. The Council through its key priorities and annual
objectives continues to provide recreational facilities for young people; and
provide concessions at its leisure facilities for the young, elderly and disabled
members of the community.
Other external reviews during the year included:
 ISO9001 accreditation for the building control services
 Investors in People accreditation
 Health and Safety Executive engagement programme
 North West Employers award for elected members development
Significant governance and internal control issues
The review of the governance arrangements has not identified any significant
weaknesses. We believe that the existing governance arrangements are fit
for purpose and are adequate to discharge the Council’s legal responsibilities
and to meet the Council’s corporate aims.
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The following governance issues were identified during 2009-10 as a result of
the review of arrangements and by the work of external and internal audit:




Continue the develop a benefit service that is shaped round customers
with improved customer engagement and consultation
Develop a Revenues and Benefits Service Plan for the Council with a
focus on long term aims and objectives
Improve the Council’s adherence to its duty to promote equality by
attaining the “Achieving level” of the local government equality framework
by March 2011.

The issues identified above will be dealt with by the responsible officers and
progress will be monitored by the Management Board and the Audit
Committee when appropriate.
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters
to further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these
steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our
review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation an operation as
part of our next annual review.

T O Campbell
Chief Executive
21 June 2010.

Councillor K. Williams
Deputy Leader
21 June 2010
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Independent Auditor’s report to
Members of Barrow-in-Furness
Borough Council
Opinion on the accounting statements
I have audited the Authority accounting statements and related notes of Barrow-inFurness Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2010 under the Audit
Commission Act 1998. The accounting statements comprise the Income and
Expenditure Account, the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, the
Balance Sheet, the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow
Statement, the Housing Revenue Account, the Statement of Movement on the
Housing Revenue Account, the Collection Fund and the related notes. These
accounting statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out in
the Statement of Accounting Policies.
This report is made solely to the members of Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council in
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose,
as set out in paragraph 49 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of
Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in April 2008.
Respective responsibilities of the Borough Treasurer and Auditor
The Borough Treasurer’s responsibilities for preparing the accounting statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of
Recommended Practice are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts.
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland).
I report to you my opinion as to whether the accounting statements give a true and
fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A
Statement of Recommended Practice, of the financial position of the Authority and its
income and expenditure for the year.
I review whether the governance statement reflects compliance with ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in
June 2007. I report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by
CIPFA/SOLACE or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other
information I am aware of from my audit of the accounting statements. I am not
required to consider, nor have I considered, whether the governance statement
covers all risks and controls. Neither am I required to form an opinion on the
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effectiveness of the Authority’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures.
I read other information published with the accounting statements, and consider
whether it is consistent with the audited accounting statements. This other
information comprises the Explanatory Foreword. I consider the implications for my
report if I become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies
with the accounting statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any other
information.
Basis of audit opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the accounting statements and related notes. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the
accounting statements and related notes, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.
I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which I considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related notes are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the accounting statements and related notes.
Opinion
In my opinion the Authority accounting statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of
Recommended Practice, of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March
2010 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.
Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance and regularly to review the adequacy and effectiveness
of these arrangements.
Auditor’s Responsibilities
I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper
arrangements have been made by the Authority for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit
Commission requires me to report to you my conclusion in relation to proper
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arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria for principal local authorities
specified by the Audit Commission and published in May 2008 and updated in
October 2009. I report if significant matters have come to my attention which prevent
me from concluding that the Authority has made such proper arrangements. I am not
required to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.
Conclusion
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. In so
doing, I identified that the Authority has a number of significant weaknesses in its
governance arrangements for procurement, tendering and contracting arrangements,
including:
• ongoing non-compliance with Standing Orders;
• work being completed without a contract in place;
• contract variation orders not always complete or properly authorised; and
• a lack of supporting documentation to evidence the appointment of consultants.
Having regard to the criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit
Commission and published in May 2008 and updated in October 2009, I am satisfied
that, in all significant respects, Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council made proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
for the year ending 31 March 2010 except for promoting and demonstrating the
principles and values of good governance.
Certificate
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission.

Gina Martlew
Officer of the Audit Commission
Audit Commission
Aspinall House
Aspinall Close
Middlebrook
Bolton
BL6 6QQ
30 September 2010
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